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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603.271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 H-wsv.dhhs.nh.gov

November 8, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Community Action Program
Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc. (VC#177203), Concord, NH to add funding and modify
scope for the continued provision of a housing services continuum of care project, by increasing
the price limitation by $43,113 from $1,463,716 to $1,506,829 with no change to the contract
completion date of November 30, 2027, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 14, 2023, (Item
#36).

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated to be available in State
Fiscal Years 2026, 2027 and 2028, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in
the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM
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State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500585
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
multiple $286,952 $0 $286,952

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
42307050 $365,929 $8,296 $374,225

2026 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
42307050 $365,929 $14,371 $380,300

2027 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
42307050 $365,929 $14,371 $380,300
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2028 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
42307050 $78,977 $6,075 $85,052

Total $1,463,716 $43,113 $1,506,829

EXPLANATION

This request is Solo Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source be identified as sole source. Federal regulations.require all
procurement efforts for these services to be directed by HUD through an annual Continuum of
Care (CoC) competitive application process. The Department must contract with the vendor
selected as a result of this HUD process. HUD awarded additional funding for the Permanent
Supportive Housing program on May 20,2024.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Department to increase funding and modify
scope to support the Contractor's continued delivery of a continuum of care housing project.

Approximately 8 households will continue to be served, at any given time annually, through
the Permanent Housing project, and a range of 100-500 will continue to be served through the
Coordinated Entry project.

The Contractor, utilizing the federally required Housing First model, will continue to deliver
Permanent Supportive Housing services offering long-term rental assistance for participants with
a disability, as defined by HUD. Additionally, the Contractor will continue providing participants
with quick access to the most appropriate services and housing resources available through
Coordinated Entry and provide targeted housing services, supportive services and case
management. Overall, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more
Independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing annual reports provided by
the Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual requirements.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 14.267, FAIN #'s
NH0157T1T002301 and NH0096L1T002308.

In the event the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

Tht.Ikpartmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care CAPBM contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Departmenr) and Community Action
Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on June 14, 2023 (Item #36), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon .written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained

in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,506,829

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B, Amendment #1,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms; Section 1.1, to read:

1.1 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle. A-Housing
Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as awarded by the US Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Continuum of Care Program, Assistance Listing Number 14.267, on:

1.1.1 . March 28, 2023, FAIN #'s NH0096L1T002207. and NH0157L1T002200

1.1.2 May 20. 2024. FAIN NH0157T1T002301; and NH0096L1T002308

4. Modify Exhibit C-3, Budget through Exhibit C-8 Budget, by replacing them in their entirety with
Exhibit C-3, Budget, Amendment #1,. through Exhibit C-8, Budget, Amendment #1, which are
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Community Action Program Belknap
and Merrimack Counties, Inc. A-S-i .3 Contractor initials.

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date

v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain In full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/12/2024

Date

—OocuSlgntd bjr;

lUtf* S. F<Me

Name:Karja s. fox

Title:
Di rector

11/11/2024

Date

Community Action Program Belknap
and Merrimack Counties, Inc.
^ DoeuStgntd by;

a7ai848CB8M<Q8.4«.

Name:

chief Executive officer

Community Action Program Belknap
and Merrimack Counties, Inc.

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01-A01

V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment,-having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

'  ̂-^DocuSion#*! by:

11/12/2024

■  \ 7W»4a4«»f44iW.-.. . I I

Date . Name: cuarino ^
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Program Belknap
and Merrimack Counties, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. Continuum of Care

1.1.1. Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)

1.1.1.1. The Contractor must provide PSH, which is long-term assistance
for participants with a disability as defined by The U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The Contractor must
provide assistance to program participants until the participant(s)
chooses to exit the' project or is terminated from the project as
determined by HUD regulations, 24 CFR 578

1.1.1.2. The Contractor, must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing
program, in this agreement, that is targeted to serve 13 individuals,
youth, and/or families, utilizing eight (8) housing units.

1.1.1.3. The Contractor must provide tenant based rental assistance that is
permitted for greater than 24 months, does not have a designated
end date, and must be administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum, as set forth in 24
CFR 578.7(a)(9). Tenant based rental assistance is rental
.assistance in which program participants choose housing of an
appropriate size in which to reside.

1.1.1.4. The Contractor must provide supportive services designed to meet
the needs of the program participants.

1.1.1.5. The Contractor must ensure that program participants are not
required to participate in supportive services as a condition of their

■ housing.

1.1.1.6. The Contractor must ensure PSH projects provide supportive
services for participants that will ensure successful retention in or
help in obtaining permanent housing, including all supportive
services, regardless of funding.

1.1.1.7. The Contractor must assign a case manager to each participant
upon program entry.

1.1.1.8. The Contractor must develop a housing stability plan with program
participants that outlines the steps to be taken, including but not
limited to:

1.1.1.8.1. Increasing both earned and non-eamed income;

1.1.1.8.2. Ensuring that program participants receive individual
assistance in obtaining the benefits of mainstream
health, social, and employment programs for which

DS

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractof Initials

11/11/2024
Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc. Page 1 of 19 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

they are eligible to apply and that meet their needs;
and

1.1.1.8.3. Maintaining permanent housing or facilitating exits to
positive permanent housing destinations.

1.1.1.9. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service

needs of the program participants and adjust the services
accordingly.

1.1.2. • Coordinated Entrv fCE)

1.1.2.1. The Contractor must ensure the implementation of a Coordinated
Entry system, in accordance with the Continuum of Care (CoC)
Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended, in this
agreement.

1.1.2.2. The Contractor must ensure the project:

1.1.2.2.1. Provides participants \vith quick access-to the most
appropriate services and housing resources
available;

1.1.2.2.2. Incorporates cultural and linguistic competencies in
all engagement, assessment, and referral
coordination activities; and

1.1.2.2.3. ' Operates a person-centered approach and with
.  person-centered outcomes.

1.1.2.3. The Contractor must act as the Regional Access Point for the.
designated area (Belknap and Merrimack Counties) for the CE
System.

1.1.2.3.1. The Contractor must ensure all Regional Access
Points conduct an initial screening of risk or potential
harm perpetrated on participants as a result of
domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or dating
violence: In the event a defined risk is deemed to be

present, the Contractor must ensure participants are
referred or linked to available specialized services
and housing assistance, using a trauma-informed
approach designed to address the particular service
needs of survivors of.abuse, neglect, and violence.

1.1.2.4. The Contractor must ensure that there are staff responsible for
supporting or managing the day-to-day functions of the CE System,
which may include any combination of the following: maintaining a .
prioritization list; assisting with matching participants to available
housing resources; communicating referrals; facilitating case
conferencing meetings; assisting with grievance and a^^peal

J/!
SS-2024-D8H-06-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials^

11/11/2024
Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties. Inc. Page 2 of 19 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

processes; monitoring CE activity; and preparing CE monitoring
and evaluation reports.

1.1.2.5. The Contractor must review and sign the New Hampshire
Coordinated Entry Partnership Agreement, which outlines the
standards and expectations for participation in and compliance with
policies and procedures which govern CE System operations.

1.1.2.6. The Contractor must affirmatively market their housing and
supportive services to eligible individuals regardless of race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, age, familial status, or disability who
are least likely to apply in the absence of special outreach, and
maintain records of those marketing activities.

1.1.2.7. The Contractor must post, or otherwise make publicly available, a
notice, provided by the CoC described in Section 1.1.2.1., that
describes the CE System. The Contractor must ensure that the
notice is posted in the agency waiting areas, as well as any areas
where participants may congregate or receive services (e.g., dining
hall). The Contractor must ensure that all staff at each agency know
which personnel within their agency can discuss and explain the
CE System to participants seeking more information..

1.1.2.8. The Contractor must ensure all services provided are physically
accessible to persons with mobility barriers. The Contractor must
ensure that all CE system communications and documentation are
accessible to persons with limited ability to read and understand
English.

1.1.2.9. The Contractor must ensure that all persons who are fleeing or
attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking have immediate and confidential access to
"available crisis services within the defined CE System geographic
area as described in Section 1.1.2.3.

1.1.2.10. The Contractor must ensure that all persons served by the CE
System are assessed using the approved CoC Coordinated Entry
Assessment tool. The Contractor must use this tool to ensure that

all persons served are assessed in a consistent manner, using the
same process. The Contractor must: ,

1.1.2.10.1. Ensure that participant assessment information is
updated at least once a year if the participant is
served by the CE System for more than 12 months.
Staff may update participant records with new
information as new or updated information becomes
known by staff; and

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials^'
11/11/2024

Community Action Program Belknap and Menimack Counties. Inc. Page 3 of 19 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.1.2.10.2. Conduct assessments in accordance with the

policies and procedures of the CE System. The
assessment process will progressively collect only
enough participant information to prioritize and refer
participants to available CoG housing and support
services.

1.1.2.11. The Contractor must collect accurate and meaningful data on
persons served by the CE System, review evaluation results, and
offer insights about potential improvements to CE System

-;r processes and operations per HMIS Data Standards - HUD
Exchange..

1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.2.1 The Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the

approved HUD Project Application #SF-424.

1.2.2. The Contractor must ensure that participants meet at least one, or more, of
the qualifications of homelessness, as defined by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3.

1.2.3. The Contractor must participate in the regional and CoC CE System.

1.2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.2.5. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department as requested
by the Department.

1.2.6. The Contractor must ensufe^aff participate in training as required by the
Department.

1.2.7. The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.7.1. Utilization of the Housing First model that ensures:

1.2.7.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
those required by federal regulations or state laws;
and

1.2.7.1.2. Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after available options to maintain housing
are exhausted, as detailed in HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91.

1.2.7.2. Development of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive Services that is provided to participants in order to
deliver assistance in obtaining necessary skills and resources to
live in the community independently.

1.2.8. The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services and
community resources to meet basic needs including, but not limited to:

DS

»
SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01-A01 8-2.0 Contractor Initials'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

housing, safety, food, mental health and medical care. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.2.8.1. Participants increase safety through planning and trauma-informed
resource provision;

1.2.8.2. Facilitation of the transition of individuals, youth, and families
experiencing homelessness to permanent housing and maximized
self-sufficiency;

1.2.8.3. Participants,are empowered by Contractor's program to increase
safety and regain control and independence;

1.2.8.4. Participants are offered connections to assistance in applying for
Compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
advocacy and referrals to free legal services; and

1.2.8.5. Households with children will be connected to education resources,
school staff, and childcare services, based on need.

1.2.9. I The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the

program participants and. adjust the services accordingly.

1.2.10. The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for substance

misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer support, or any other need for
referral assistance identified by the participant.

1.2.11. The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retairiing permanent housing, as well as participants' connections with
community and mainstream services, to increase independence and
household income to sustain permanent housing.

1.2.12. The Contractor must actively participate in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department or HUD, on
an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that must

-  include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations. The
Contractor must:

1.2.12.1. Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files;

1.2.12.2. Ensure financial data is available, as requested by the Department
and/ or HUD; and

1.2.12.3. Provide other information that assists in determining contract
compliance, as requested by the Department and/or HUD.

1.2.13. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under24 CFR Part
578.103(b), HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector General, and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,

.  papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (CoC) grant,
DS

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials^
11/11/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

In order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights
of access are, not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as
the records are retained.

1.2.14. The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

1.2.15. The Contractor rnust cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from representatives of state or federal agencies
who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents.

1.2.16. The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project Application #SF-424 and other written appropriate HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD waivers are granted.

1.2.17. The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families meet
the requirement definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of
homelessness qualifications, as defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible for
contract services, as applicable to the project.

1.2.18. Per The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing (HEARTH) Act of 2009,
https://www.hud.qov/sites/documents/HAAA HEARTH.PDF:

1.2.18.1. the Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS) as' the primary
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.-

1.2.18.2. The Contractor must ensure all programs are licensed to provide
client level data into the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,
per 24 CFR 578, and as detailed in the following publication from
The National Network to End Domestic Violence (NNEDV):
https://files.hudexchanae.info/resources/documents/FY-2024-

HMIS-Comparable-Database-Manual.pdf

1.2.18.3. The Contractor must follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information
Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy requirements.

1.2.19. The Contractor must comply with all record-keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103.

-DS

SS-2024-D8H-06-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.2.20. The Contractor must establish and maintain standard operating procedures to
ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578, 2 CFR
Part 500, and must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD
and the Department to determine Contractor compliance, including, but not
limited to:

1.2.20.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor must maintain the

following documentation related to establishing and operating a
CoC:

1.2.20.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor must

maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b);

1.2.20.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The

Contractor must maintain records that establish "at

risk of homelessness" status of each individual or

family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.2.20.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of

Harm. The Contractor must maintain documentation

of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic

violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor
must retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

1.2.20.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented in
the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the
housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation from a victim

service, provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; medical
or dental records; court records or law
enforcement records; or written
certification by the program participant
to whom the violence occurred or by
the head of household; and

SS-2024-OBH-06-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care • CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.2.20.1.3.2. The reasonable belief of ,imminent
threat of further domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or
stalking, which would include threats
from a third-party, such as a friend or
family member of the perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service
provider; a letter or other

'  documentation from a victim service
provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; current
restraining order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement
report or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends '
of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, text
messages, and social media posts; or
a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence
occurred or the head of household.

1.2.20.2. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is
paid by the program participant, the Contractor must keep the

"following documentation of annual income:

1.2.20.2.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

1.2.20.2.2. Source documents, which include but are not limited
to:

1.2.20.2.2.1. Most recent wage statement;

1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation
statement;

1.2.20.2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank
statements for the assets held by the
program participant; and

1.2.20.2.2.4. Income received before the date of the

evaluation.

SS-2024-DBH-06.CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials^
11/11/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

^  EXHIBITS-Amendment #1 '

1.2.20.2.3. To the extent that source documents are

unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third
party, which may include an employer or a
govemment benefits administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor's Intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or

1.2.20.2.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party
verification are unobtainable, the written certification
by the program participant of the amount of income
that the program participant is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period following
the evaluation.

1.2.20.3. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of

homelessness status or at-riSk-of-homelessness status, as
applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

1.2.20.3.1. The services and assistance provided to that
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of

services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the
service package accordingly, and including case
management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F);and

1.2.20.3.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

1.2.20.4. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of

compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b),
including inspection reports.

1.2.20.5. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor must keep
documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessary.

1.2.21. The Contractor must maintain records that document compliance with:

1.2.21.1. The organizational conflict-of-interest reguirements in 24 CFR

578.95(c);

>—DS
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1.2.21.2. The CoC board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR

578.95(b); and ■

1.2.21.3. The other conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

1.2.22. The Contractor must develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1.2.23. The Contractor must comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

1.2.23.1. The homeless participation requirements in accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g);

1.2.23.2. The faith-based activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b);

1.2.23.3. Requirements of 24 CFR 578.93(c) for affirmatively furthering fair
housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and other
materials used to inform eligible persons of the program;

1.2.23.4. Other federal requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

1.2.23.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and

1.2.23.6. Procurement requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

1.2.24. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

1.2.24.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are
kept secure and confidential;

1.2.24.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
CoC funds, are not made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

1.2.24.3.. The address or location of any housing of a program participant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with state and
local la\ys regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

1.3. Contract Administration

1.3.1. The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or
trainings requested by the Department's Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS),
including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and
federal laws. To the extent possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the
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need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance of each
meeting.

1.3.2. The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within 30
days of the change.

1.4. Reporting Requirements

1.4.1. The Contractor must submit an Annual Perforrriance Report (APR) to the
Department within 30 days after the Contract Completion Date on the form
required, or specified, by the Department.

1.4.2. The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.4.3. The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results
of the project activities, consistent with the format proposed in the Contractor's
application submitted to HUD for the relevant.fiscal year COC Notice of
Funding Opportunity (NOFO).

1.4.4. The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance v^th NH HMIS policy and/or Department policies and procedures.

1.4.5. The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department,
in a format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and
metrics, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

1.5. Background Checks

1.5.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this Agreement, the
Contractor must ensure that said individual has undergone:

1.5.1.1.

1.5.1.2.

1.5.1.3.

A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and has
no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement;

A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement; and

A name search of the Department's Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35,
with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement.

1.6. Confidential Data

SS-2024.DBH-06-CONT1-01-A01 8-2.0

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties. Inc. Page 11 of 19

Contractor Initials

Date

11/11/2024



Docusign Envelope ID; 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - CAPBM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.6.1. The Contractor.must meet all information security and privacy requirements
as set by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

1.6.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering services
through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view^
store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws
and regulations and the Department's Information Security Requirements
Exhibit. The Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable
business need to access confidential data. The Contractor must provide
attestations upon Department request.

1.7. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.7.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment ■ (PIA) of its
system(s)/application{s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal{s)/website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department
access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following:

.7.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

.7.1.2. Who will have access to. Pll;

.7.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

.7.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

.7.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.7.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the collectiori,
processing or storage of Pll.

1.8. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.8.1. Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information Security
Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this Agreement, authorized by
the Department's Information Security Office to use a Department issued
device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or access the Department
network in the fulfilment of this Agreement, must:

1.8.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use agreements,
policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and complete
applicable trainings as required;

1.8.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department business and agree that all other

DS
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use or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to
personal or other private and non-Department use, and that at no
time shall they access or attempt to access information without
having the express authority of the Department to do so;

1.8.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
agreement relating to system entry/access;

1.8.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse engineer,
rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by
the Department, and at all times must use utmost care to protect
and keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the
license or any other agreement executed by the Department;

1.8.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription{s) authorized by the
Department's Information Security Office or designee;

T.8.1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department equipment
unless authorized by the Department's Information Security Office
or designee;

1.8.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication messages
created, sent, and received on a Department-issued email system
are the property of the Department of New Hampshire and to be
used for business purposes only. Email is defined as "internal
email systems" or "Department-funded email systems."

1.8.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH DolT
policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.8.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.8.1.9.1. To only use a Department email address assigned to
them with a affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov".

1.8.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines information identifying
the End User as a non-Department workforce
member; and

1.8.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message may contain
information that is privileged and confidential and is
intended only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is
addressed. If you receive this message in error, please
notify the sender immediately and delete this electronic
message and any attachments from your system. Thank
you for your cooperation."
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1.8.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access or
potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace in a
Department building/facility, must:

1.8.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information
Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting
Department Data or Confidential Data.

1.8.1.10.2. Sign the Department's Business Use and
Confidentiality Agreement and Asset Use
Agreement, and the NH Doll Department wide
Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the
Agreement and annually thereafter.

1.8.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view the
Department's Policies and Procedures and
Information Security webpages.

.  1.8.1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in violation of any
of the above terms and conditions, said End User may face
removal from the Agreement, and/or criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

1.8.1.12. - Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three
business days prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations of
End Users vJho possess Department credentials and/or badges or
who have system privileges. If End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges resign or
are dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees to
notify the Department's Information Security Office or designee
immediately.'

1.8.2. Workspace Requirement

1.8.2.1. If applicable, the Departnrient will work with Contractor to determine
requirements for providing necessary workspace and State
equipment for its End Users.

1.9. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.9.1. General Requirements

1.9.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement.the
parties agree to cooperate in good faith to'effectuate a smooth
secure transition of the Services from the Contractor to the

Department and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the '
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known as

"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
08
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unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor must
begin working with the Department and if applicable, the new
Recipient to- develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The
Department shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

1.9.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient,
in connection with the transition from the performance of Services
by the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such
Services. This may include assistance with the secure transfer of
records (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service from
the hardware, software, network and telecommunications
equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT, Systems") of Contractor to the Internal
IT Systems of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance
to any third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in connection
with the Transition Services.

1.9.1.3. If . a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software
licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract said
Tools will be inventoried and returned to the Department, along
with the inventory document, once transition of Department Data is
complete.

1.9.1.4. ' The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users shall be provided to the Department and if
applicable the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services shall be deemed to be Services for purposes of this
Agreement.

1.9.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until
the Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

1.9.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data
and the destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the
Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of the Department's
DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.9.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.9.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed (and ■

the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days
after the product, resulting from the Service, is deliver^(,9 the
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Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually
agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day
term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue requiring

. additional time to complete said product.

1.9.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions
of the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.9.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.9.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in
writing, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate
actions in accordance with the Agreement.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy
Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I,
Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services (CLAS)

3.2.

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the comnriunication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/pr services to individuals with limited English proficiency;
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individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of this Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this,(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract
with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services, with funds provided In part by the State of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under this Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;

3.3.3.1. Brochures;

3.3.3.2. Resource directories;

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;

3.3.3.4. Posters; and

3.3.3.5. Reports

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under this
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any governmental license or permit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities
must comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
must be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

DS
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3.5. Eligibility Determinations

3.5.1.

3.5.2.

3.5.3.

3.5.4.

If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
youth, and/ or families such eligibility verifications must be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders,
guidelines, policies and procedures.

Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided, or required by
the Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or
reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

In addition to. the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each participant of services
hereunder, which file must include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor must fumish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with applicable regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to;

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,,
without limitation; all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all invoices
submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.
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4.2. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to
CoC funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date
and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required
to be maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state
or federal law or regulation.

4.3. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any
of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts.

4.4. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or
to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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|CoC Funds • NH009S11TD0230B

SFY2025 - 7/1/24-6/30/2S
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MOWTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Leasng t,27? 1.272
Supportive S«(vice«
AOmmietration 6.375
2S« Required Mateti
TOTAL HUBFUN&S/BALAUee 220,005 176,t75

•TOTAl*^7/l/24:6/30/25'
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET. YTD MONTHLY

leasng
Supportive SeivKes
Admindtraim

25% Required Match
TOTAL hub PiiN&irfiALAtlOE

45.102

Tout W/0 Mateh 176.175

Contraaor Initials
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BMCAP PSH

|C0C Funds • NH0157T1T002301

SFY2025 - 12/1/24-6/30/25
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BK5 SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Aaaltlance 0  69.356 5 5 9 - 3 i  69.356 t s

Supportive Servicee 5  44.650 5 S S • $ 5  ' 44.650 S -

Adminiatration 1  S.067 ) s 5 S • 5 1  5,067 S -

25% Raquirad Match t  31.035 * 5  31.035 $ 5 -

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE S  150,100 S 5  31.035 5.- % $  119,073 » •

TOTAL PROOkAM COST
SFY2026 - 7/1/25-11/30/25

COKTRACTOR SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assisiance 49.M0 49.M0

Suppoftlve Services

Administration 3.630

35% Required Match
TDTALHUB PUND&eAUNCE

22.168 22.168

107.220 22,160 05,052

VoYAL»>R66kAM66^V
TOTAL -12/1/24-11/30/25

CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Astisiance 110,096

Supportive Servicee 79.542 76,542

AdmlnlstraUon 0.687

25% Reqiiied Match

TBTJOUBTDFBSJBXDOICE"
53.203 53.203

257,320 53,203 204,125

ToUl W/0 Match 204,125
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CAP8M • CE

|CoC Fund* - NK0096L1T002308

SFY2026 - 7/l/2S-6/30/2e

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE SMS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD • MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Leating 1.272 1,272

Supportive setvices ies,s2s

AdminieKainn 6.J75

2S% Requited Malcn
TOTAL NOD 7UU&&/BALAMCE 29,000 t76,17S

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

•TOTAL'^7/1'/25-6/30/26*
CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Leaiing

Supportive Seivice* 160,928 168,929

Adminieiralion

2i% Required Malcn

TOTAL Uiib PUNOBvAAUMCe

Total W/O Match 176.178

Contractor Inltiah

SS-202A-DBH-06-COKT1-01-A01

CommunJtv Action Frograin Bellinep end Merrlmack Counilei. Inc
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Exhibit C-6, Budget, Amendment ei

BMCAP PSH

|coC Funds - NH0iS7TlT0O23Ol

TOTAL PROGRAM C^sV

SFY2026 • 12/1/2S-6/30/26
CONTRACTOR SHARE

Activity Name BUOOET VTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Aeeleunce 69.396

Supportive ServicM 44.650

AdmMetrstlon 9.067

25K Required Match
TOTAL HUD PUNb&BALANee

31.035 31,035

190,106 31,039 119.073

Y6YAL t»R6ohAH tbhT
SFY2027 • 7/1/26-11/30/26

CONTRACTOR SHXit^

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Astislance 49,940 49.940

Supponive Services

AdnVnlstratlon 3.620

25% Required Match 22.16S

TOTAL HUD FUHDS^BALAHee 107220 22.168 85.052

TOTAL -12/1/25-11/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE &HS6HARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Astbiance 6  116,696 9 9 - 9  116.896 9 -

Supponive Servlcee 9  76.542 9 9 - 9  76.942 9 - 9

Adminbuation 9  6.687 9 9 - 9 9  6.687 9 •

29% Required Match 9  99,203 9 9  53J03 9 9 9 -

TOTAL HUD FUND6i&ALAH££ . 9  297,33t 9 * 9  93,203 9 - 9 9  204,125 9 •

Total W/0 Match 204,125

m

SS-2024-0BH-06<ONTI-01-A01

Community Action Program Bdlcnap end Merrimac): Counties, Inc.

Contractor Initials.

Dite
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C-7, Budget. Amendment *1

CAPBM • CE

|C0C Fund* • NH0096L1T002308

SFY2027 • 7/1/26-6/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

iLeaemfl 1.?72

Supportive Serncee ISS.93S

Admtmttretnn 6.179

?S% Required Msicti

VsTJTTOcrTOrosTBSDWcr 213.M) 19,000 176,t79

TOTAL~^7/l'/26-6/30/27'
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Leasing t  1,272 9  - 9 9 • 9 $  1.272 9 - 9  I-

Supportive Services 9  160,920 9 9 9 - 9 9  160.920 9 •

Administratan t  6,179 9 9 9 • 9 9  6.175 9 - 9  • I'i

25% Requireil Match $  19.000 9 . 9 9  19.000 9 9 9 • .9  'i
TOTAL HUO FUNDS/dALAU£e t  719,179 %  .. .. i. 9  IS.OOO t • 9 9  176.179 9 - 9  1-

Total W/O Match 176.179

a
Contractor Iniiialt

SS-2024-OeH-06COK'TI-01-A01

Community Action Piogrim Beliinap and Merrlmack Counties, Inc.
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Exhibit C-S, Budget. Amendment si

BMCAP PSH

|C0C Fund! - NH0157T1T002301

SFY2027 - 12/1/26-6/30/27
TOTAL PROGRAM COST .  C0NTNACT6B BMABB bhB BHArB

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 5 69,356 5 S • 5 5  69,356 S -

Supportive Services 44.650 $ 5 ■ % 5  44.650 5 ■

Administration 5.067 3 S • i 5  5.067 $ ••

25% Requirad Match 31.035 S 5  31.035 5 5 -

TOTAL HUO FUNOS/BALANCE 150,106 $ 5  31.035 $ - 5 $  119.073 $ - $

Y6YAL^R66kAM66^V
SFY2028 - 7/1/27-11/30/27

"^5RfRSC75fi"SiXKr
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MOtmtLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 49.»40

SupportKe Oervtces

Admlnistntion sex 3.630

39% Required Match

TCTXCWTDHCSTBroOICr
22,166

107.220 27,166 tS,DS2

TOTAL PROGRAm COST
TOTAL -12/1/26-11/30/27

bHs^HAre
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance 116.6W

Supportive Servlees 79M2 76,frl2
AdministratMn 6.667

29% Required Match
TCTSnTtJffTOmSSTODOrre"

53.203

257.326 53,203 7ft«.175

Toul VtIO Match 204,125

Contractor Initials

SS-2024-08H-06<ONn-01-A01

Community Action Program Belknapand Merrlmack Counties, Inc.

11/11/2024
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. 1 further certify' that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and Is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0006794263

5?
a.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 17th day of October A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan,

Secretary of State
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACKCOUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 19 6 5

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Christdbtier J. F^/lesyP^es^deht■'Board of Directors, hereby certify that; .

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Gdmrhuhitv Action Program BelKnap-Meitlmack Gouhtles. Inc;

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on-March 14. 2024. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director. Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal OfRcer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Cfir/sfop/jer J. Pyles, Chair, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of CommiihitV Action Program Belkhab-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter
into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which rnay in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote.has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority was valid thirty (30) days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this
Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire wilt
rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posttion(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of
New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: I I /& /mt Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Christopher J. RyfSs"
Title: President, Bo^doKJTrectors

R«v. 11/06/2024

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 8 Old Suncook Road, Concord, NH
■ Phone; 603 225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 TTY/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax: 603 228-1898

Website: capbm.org
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMroD/YYYY)

10/02/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE.DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING iNSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER '

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Eirn Street

Manchester NH 03101

Stephanie Peffer

{603)669-3218 (603)645-4331

ADDRESS- fnanch.certsigcrossagency.com
INSURER(S) APPOROING COVERAGE NAiCS

INSURER A - Selective Insurance Co. of SC 19259

INSURED

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B; State Health Care c/o Midwest Empbyers Casua 23612

INSURER c: P®dBral Ins Co 20281

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURERP:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24.25A1I lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OP INSURANCE

X
rymivTn POUCY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

OENtAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO-X

X

JECT

OTHER- Frofessional Liability

S 2509940

POUCY EPF
IMM/DDIYYYYt

10/01/2024

POUCY EXP
(MMrtlDiYYYYl

10/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAiUOE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occufrencel

MED EXP (Any oot pfcnl

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PROOUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

Professional Liability

, 1.000.000

1.000.000

20,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

S 1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANY AUTOX

C0M8MED SINGLE LIMIT i 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per perMt«)

OWNED
AUTOSONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

S 2509940 10/01/2024 10/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per •cddenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per Accidentl

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LiAB

DEO

X OCCUR

ClAJMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 5,000,000

S 2509940 10/01/2024 10/01/2025
AGGREGATE

5,000,000

RETENnON S

WORKERS COMPENSATION -

AND EMPLOYERS' UABUJTY

ANY PROPRieTORff»ARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFPICEiVMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandetory In NH)
11 ye*, desaibe under
DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS bel»v

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

0 HCHS20240000547 (3o.) NH 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 E.L. EACHACaOENT
1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
, 1,000,000

Directors & Officers Liability
J06511302 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Limit

Deductible

51,000.000

55.000

OESCRIPTWN OP OPERATIONS ILOCATK3NS / VEHICLES (ACORD101, Addltionel Remarks Schedule, may be aCached If mere apace Is required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire; Department of

Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

'

. SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Docuslgn Envelope ID: O2CCCDF8-O1CD-4442-B78O-FF08731BC19F

-  %
o

o
u

BELKNAP-MERIUMACKCOUNTIES.INC.
EUI>'OW6BINQ.COWMOHIT«C8 SIKCC I ••ft

The Mission of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack, Inc.
To assist in reducing poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
low-income families and individuals to reach economic stability.
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Financial Statements

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT AND

REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.
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TABLE OF CONTENTS

Paqefs)

Independent Auditors' Report 1-3

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 4

Consolidated Statements of Activities 5 - 6

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses 7 - 8

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 9

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 10-22

Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 23-24

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards . 25

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards 26-27

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance required by the Uniform
Guidance 28-30

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 31 - 32



Docusign Envelope 10: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-8780-FF88731BC19F

Leone, ,
McDonnell
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DOVER • WOLFEBORO

NORTH COiWAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
*

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of February 28, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
■position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of February 28, 2023
and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibiiities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the. preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence.regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

.• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

'• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated .financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards

2
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generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
14, 2023, on our consideration of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness' of Community Action'Program
of Belknap-Merrimack. Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Dover, New Hampshire
September 14, 2023
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

2023

1.711.575

6,027,912
81,569

100,225

128,956

2022

$  1,384,485
5,244,621
271,926

33,926

138,793

Total current assets 8,050,237 7,073,753

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles
Construction in process

7,627,214
4,762,497
132,920

7,368,799
6,335.485

41.401

Total property 12,522,631 13,745,685

Less accumulated depreciation 6,165,156 7,528,363

Property, net 6,357,475 6.217,322

OTHER ASSETS

Right of use asset
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Tenant security deposits
Due from related party

1,387,327

77,328

8,247

61,348

89,468

9,120

65,488

Total other assets 1,534,250 164,076

TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,941,962 $ 13,455.151

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of right of use liability
Line of credit

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

$  237,926
461,162

4,550,252

.1,177,337

1,817,340

$  314,265

154.350

3,635,655
1,086,207

1,537,802

Total current liabilities 8.244.017 6,728,279

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Notes payable, less current portion shown above
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above,
Tenant security deposits

668,146

926,165

8,221

900,489

9,120

Total liabilities 9,846,549 7,637,888

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

5,530,452
564,981

5,179,734
637,529.

Total net assets 6,095,413 5,817,263

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 15,941.962 $ 13,455,151

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental income

Other funds

In-kind

United Way
Interest income

Realized loss on sale of equipment

$ 56,930,603

140,962

2,804,065

401,748

3,659

895

(36,538)

$

3,122,293

S 56,930,603
140.962

5,926,358
401,748

3,659

895

(36,538)

Total revenues and other support 60.245,394 3,122.293 63,367,687

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 3,194,861 (3.194,861)

Total 63,440,255 (72,568) 63,367.687

EXPENSES

Program
Management

61.101,300
1,988,237

- 61,101,300
1,988,237

Total expenses 63,089,537 63,089,537

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 350.718 (72,568) 278,150

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,179,734 637,529 5,817,263

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR . $ 5,530,452 $  564,961 $  6,095,413

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

5
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental lncome

Other funds

Paycheck Protection Program Loan Forgiveness
In-kind

United Way

Interest Income

Realized gain on sale of equipment

$  ■ 36,482,087

135,298

2.526,432
1,615,427
592,136

2,123

74

7,200

$

2,650,984

$  36,482,087
135,298

5,177,416
1,615,427

592,136
2,123

74

7,200

Total revenues and other support 41,360,777 2,650,984 44,011,761

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 3,062,287 (3,062,287)

Total 44,423,064 (411,303) 44,011,761

EXPENSES

Program
Management

40,084,851
1,917,438

- 40,084,851
1.917,438

Total expenses 42,002,289 .. 42,002,289

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,420,775 (411,303) 2,009,472

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,758,959 1,048,832 3,807,791

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR S  5,179,734 $  637,529 $  5,817,263

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Docusign Envelope ID; 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780.FF887318C19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Proa ram Manaaement Total

Salaries and wages $  8,902,376 $  841,141 $ 9,743,517

Payroll taxes and benefits 2,422,222 155,843 2,578,065

Travel 233,521 16,301 249,822

Occupancy 1,380,924 133,139 1,494,063

Program services 44,607,205 - 44.607,205
Other costs;

Accounting fees 66,194 1,959 68,153

Legal fees 24,793 268 25,061

Supplies 289,188 38,955 328,143

Postage and shipping 45,766 - 45,766

Equipment rental and maintenance 1,540 - 1,540

Printing and publications 41,775 15,970 57,745

Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,885 - 13,885

Interest 3,991 39,049 43.040
Insurance 131,454 30,788 162,242

Membership fees 13,298 10,283 23,581

Utility and maintenance 139,247 - 139.247-

Computer services 71,214 - 71,214

Other 2,298,910 139,405 2,438,315
Depreciation 32,049 565,136 597,185
In-kind 401,748 - 401.748

Total functional expenses $  61,101,300 $  1,988,237 $ 63,089,537

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Docusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

Proaram Manaaement Total

Salaries and wages $  7,961,177 $  1.180,579 $ 9,141,756
Payroll taxes and benefits 2,296,690 228,375 2,525,065
Travel 194,343 9,648 .  203,991
Occupancy 1,267,982 114,418 1,382,400
Program services 25.639,659 - 25,639,659
Other costs;

Accounting fees - 74,855 74,855
Legal fees 15,361 152 15,513
Supplies 159,844 44,534 204,378
Postage and shipping 49,860 8,731 58,591

Equipment rental and maintenance 1,141 - 1,141

Printing and publications 28,133 27,696 55,829
Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,964 - 13,964

Interest 29,187 26,841 56,028
Insurance 124,730 43,856 168,586
Membership fees 16,276 - 16,276
Utility and maintenance 88,702 104,142 192,844

Computer services 111,990 - .111.990
Other 927.525 53,611 981,136

Depreciation 566,151 - 566,151
In-kind 592,136 - 592,136

Total functional expenses $ 40,084,851 $  1.917,438 $ 42,002,289

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Docusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CO-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Paycheck Protection program loan forgiveness
Interest on defeired financing costs
Realized loss on disposal of equipment
Decrease (increase) In current assets:

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Due from related party
Tenant security deposits

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Tenant security deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property
Additions to property
Investments

2023

278,150

597.185

483

36,538

(783,291)
190,357

(66,297)
4,140

873

914,597
91,130

279,538
(899)

1,542,504

(773,876)
9,837

2022

$  2,009,472

566,151

(1,615.427)
483

(7,200)

(1.481,812)
(216,031)

39,781

(65,488)
(2,239)

2,109.823

297,256

.  500,861
2,239

2,137,869

7,200
(1.141,101)

•  (10,797)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (764,039) (1.144,698)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net repayments on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt

(154,350)
(309,165)

(225,678)
(258.743)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (463,515) (484,421)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 314,950 508,750

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,473,953 965,203

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE. END OF YEAR $ 1.788,903 $ 1,473,953

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cash .

Cash escrow and reserve funds

S 1,711,575
77,328

$ 1,384,485
89,468

$ 1,788,903 $ 1,473,953

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 43,040 $ 56,028

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Docusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc., and the following entities as Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board. Ai|
significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from basic
consolidated financial statements.

■  Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
■  CAP BMC Development Corporation

' Basis of Accounting

• The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
■ accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally, accepted accounting principles, which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
^ stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.^

10



Docusjgn Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COIVUVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOtES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements

of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $564,961 and $637,529 at
February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively. See Note 14.

Income Taxes

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is subject to examinations by tax authorities for three
years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a "C" Corporation
under the Internal Revenue Code. The Corporation accounts for deferred income taxes
under the asset and liability method in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), "Accounting for Income Taxes". The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and
liabilities at the enacted tax rate expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realized or settled. ASC 740 also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabilities. The Corporation has no
federal net operating loss carryforwards available at February 28, 2023 and 2022.

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership (the Partnership) is taxed as a partnership. Federal
income taxes are not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings and losses are
included in the partners' federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership
earnings. Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in consolidated financial statements. The Organization
has analyzed its tax position taken on its income tax returns for the past three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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Oocusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation'is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents..

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in
such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts.

Contributions
All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restriction. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period, in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services
Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
othenwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the consolidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

12



Docusign Envelope ID; 02CCCDF8-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions

Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the
Organization might Incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received
$401,748 and $592,136 in donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended
February 28, 2023 and February 28, 2022, respectively (See Note 17).

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28. 2023 and February 28, 2022 totaled $133,749
and $134,193, respectively.

Inventorv

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in. first-out method. .

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses and conditions are
incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
as with donor restrictions if they are received with donor imposed stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in
which the contribution is received, the Organization reports the support as without donor
restrictions.

Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are performed.

Rental Revenue

Sandy Ledge (the Partnership) derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due, and control
of the apartment units is transferred to the lessees, The individual leases are for a
term of one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the Partnership
expects to be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain
the lease will be expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have

'  been allocated among the program services. and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses Incurred or
estimated usage based on time spent on each program by staff.

13



Docusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF68731BC19F

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2023 AND 2022

Expense Method of allocation

-  Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation ^ Actual assets used by program
AH other expenses Direct assignment

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to increase transparency and
comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on
the statement of financial position and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard applies a right of use model that
requires, all leases with a tease term of more than 12 months, to recognize an asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset for the leasi term and liability to make
tease payments to be recorded. The Organization elected not to restate the comparative
period. The Organization also elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or existing
contracts to determine whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of
any existing leases, (iii) initial direct costs for existing leases. The adoption, of ASU
2016-02 resulted in the recognition of operating right of use assets of $1,387,327 and
operating right of use lease liabilities of $1,387,327 as of March 1. 2022. Results for
periods beginning prior to February 28, 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with
the Organization's historical accounting treatment. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did not
have a material impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash flows.

In September 2020, the FASS issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2020-
,07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not for-Profit
Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve transparency in the
reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit
organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial assets include fixed assets such as
land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed assets or utilities; materials and
supplies, such as food or clothing; intangible assets; and recognized contributed
services. The ASU requires a not for-profit organization to present contributed
nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the statement of activities, apart from
contributions of cash or other financial assets. It also requires certain disclosures for
each category of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The Agency adopted the
provisions of ASU 2020-07 during 2022.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to,collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts

was estimated to be zero at February 28, 2023 and 2022. The Organization has no
policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CO-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

3. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,817,340 and $1,537,802 as of February 28. 2023 and 2022, respectively.

4. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 28:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated
Accounts receivable

Investments '

Cash reserves

Cash escrow

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Reserve funds

Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2023

1,711,575

6,027,912

■  128,956
74.847
2.481

7.945.771

564,961

74.847

639.808

$  7.305.963

2022

1,384,485
5,244,621
138,793

81,143
8.325

6.857.367

637,529

81.143

718.672

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $10,200,000 and $6,710,000, at February 28, 2023 and
2022, respectively. The Organization has a line of credit with $700,000 and $445,650,
available to borrow on at February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

5. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the.plan for the year ended February 28, 2023 and 2022
totaled $209,878 and $186,976, respectively.
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Docusign Envelope 10; 02CCCOFa-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

6. OPERATING LEASES
On January 1, 2022, the Organization was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, the Organization evaluated current
contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use (ROU) assets
represent the Organization's right to use'underlying.assets for the lease term, and the
lease liabilities represent the Organization's obligation to make lease payments arising
from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all of which arise from
operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of future lease payments

over the lease terms. The Organization has elected to discount future cash flows at the
risk free borrowing rates commensurate withThe lease terms, which was 1.8% at March
1, 2022. Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under FASB ASC 842 and
are recognized as costs are incurred. The Organization's operating leases are
described below.

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The-lease terms range from, month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2023 and 2022, the annual lease expense for
the leased facilities was $586,539 and $544,299. respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

2024 $ 488,157

2025 287,590

2026 92,911

2027 82,006
2028 . 77,500

Thereafter 477.065

1,505,229

Less imputed interest 117.902

Total $ 1.387.327

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $691,684 and $660,158 at
February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Organization amended the policy
effective March 1, 2022, the policy allows for a maximum of 50 days to be carried over
to the next fiscal year, however, upon termination only two weeks will be. paid out. The
two week liability is $285,599 at February 28, 2023.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-8780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES: INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (7.75% and 3.25% at Februaiy 28, 2023 and
2022, respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all
the Organization's assets. There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2023.
There was a balance of $154,350 outstanding at February 28, 2022.

The Organization had a revolving line of credit agreement (the line) in the amount of
$400,000, with a bank that is due on demand. The line called for monthly variable
interest payments based on the LIBOR rate (2.41% at February 28, 2022). The line was
secured by all the Organization's assets. There was no balance outstanding at February
28, 2022. The line was closed during the year ended February 28, 2023.

The Organization entered into an additional revolving line of credit agreement (the line)
in the amount of $500,000, with a bank that is due on June 2, 2023. The line calls for
monthly variable interest payments based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (7.75%
at February 28, 2023). The line is secured by all the Organization's assets. There was
no balance outstanding at February 28, 2023.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended February 28, 2023, approximately $18,300,000 (29%), and
$32,000,000 (51%), of the Organization's total revenue was received from the
Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury,
respectively. For the year ended February 28, 2022. $13,200,000 (30%), and
$15,300,000 (35%), of the Organization's total revenue was received from the
Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury,
respectively. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon
continued support from these departments. ,

10. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28:

2023 2022

5.50% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$1,634 through July 2039. The note is secured by ,
property of the Organization. $ 210,560 $ 218,228
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DocusJgn Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and, interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center.

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations.

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start.

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to
a- bank in monthly installments for principal and
interest of $7,511 through April 2025. $1,615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiven during the year
ended February 28, 2022. (See Note 11).

Non-interest bearing note payable by Sandy Ledge
Limited Partnership to New Hampshire Housing
deferred until June 1. 2034 or until the project is sold
or refinanced or surplus cash is available. The note is
collateralized by a mortgage on real estate.

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing cost

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Less amounts due within one year

Long term portion

71,040

35,179

65,076

187,615

341.922

911,392

(5.320)

906,072
(237.926)

219,279

42,958

116.572

280,439

343.081

1,220,557

(5.803)

1,214,754
(314.265)

$  668.146 $ 900.489
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Oocusign Envelope ID; 02CCCDFB-01CO-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES: INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2023 were as follows:

YearEndlhg
February 28 Amount

2024 $ 237,926
2025 106,239
2026 27,053

2027 18,294

2028 11,783
Thereafter 510.097

$  911.392

11. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,935,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, was established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act").

On September 14, 2021, the Organization received partial forgiveness in the amount of
$1,615,427. The forgiven proceeds are included in income for the year ended February
28, 2022. The remaining $319,873 has been converted to a-loan; due in 44 monthly
payments of principal and interest at a rate of 1%. The loan will mature in April 2025.
The outstanding balance on the PPP loan at February 28, 2023 is $187,615. (See Note
10).

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28:

2023 2022

Land $  279,340 $ 279,340

Building and improvements 7,347,874 ■7,089,459
Equipment and vehicles 4,762,497 6,335,485
Construction in process 132.920 41.401

12,522,631 13,745,685
Less accumulated depreciation 6.165.156 7.528.363

Property and equipment, net .  $ 6.357.475 $ 6.217.322

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 totaled
$597,185 and $566,151, respectively.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

13. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding frorn various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws, and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28. 2023.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 28: .

2023 2022

NH Food Pantry Coalition
Senior Center

Elder Services

Mary Gale
NH Rotary Food Challenge
Summer Feeding
Caring Fund
Agency - FAR
Agency Head Start
Agency - FP/PN
Community Crisis
Other Programs

Total net assets with donor restrictions

663

142,251

7,317
38,130

20,503
8,793

60,913

.216,604

69,329

458

663

143,437
68,427

25,629
5,064

47,540

8,792
27,307

222,258
87,253

350

809

$  564.961 $ 637.529

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc.
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc.
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc.
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc.
Riverside Housing Corporation
Twin Rivers Community Corporation
Ozanam Place, Inc.

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership

Function

HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property

Property Development
Transitional Support Services
Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Property
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The amount due from the related parties for operating activities (collectively) at February
28, 2023 and 2022 was $268,293 and $324,385, respectively, and is included in
accounts receivables. Additional amounts due from related parties at February 28, 2023
and 2022 were $61,348 and 65,488, respectively.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Community Action Program Bejknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $128,956 and $138,793 at February 28, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
rneasurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

■ Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk

At February 28, 2023 and 2022, the Organization's investments were classified as Level 1
and were based on fair value.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023 AND 2022

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1)

2023 2022

■ Beginning balance - mutual funds $ 138,793 $ 126,996
Total gains (losses) - mutual funds (9.837) 11.797

Ending balance - mutual funds $ 128.956 $ 138.793

The carrying, amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

17. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS/SERVICES

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the accounting
policies described in Note 1.

The fair value of gifts in kind included contributions in the financial statements and the
corresponding program expenses fof the year ended February 28, 2023, is as follows:

Volunteer hours

Head Start and Early Head Start $ 117,171
SCSEP ■ 88,700

Rental space 146,026
Advertising 15,960
Donated goods 33.891

Total $ 401.748

18. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 14, 2023, the
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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COMMUHrrV ACTIOM program BgLKMAP ■ MCRBIMACK CQUWngS, IWC

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND NOH^DERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. »23

FEDERAL GRANTOR!

PROGRAM TITLE

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

HEAD START CLUSTER

HesdSart

CRSSA • Head Stan

ARPA • Haad Start

Low Inccrm Hama Energy AitaiMafm Pmgrafn
ARPA-Loir Incoma Hom« Eriargy Aaaiatanca Program
Low Inecrna Home Energy Aaa^nee Program-SWP
ARPA-Lrw Incerna Homa Energy Aaaiatanca PiggtanvSWP

Low Income Water Assistance Pregiani

Community Sarvicaa Stock Grant
CV-CorrsTHtrMy Services Stock Grant

Sodal Services Block Grant-Hcme DeMreo & Conoegato Meals

Temgctary Assistance lor Needy Famlim-Family Planning
Tempccary Assistance for Needy FamHies-Famfiy Pianring FPAR

AGING CLUSTER

Ttee 111. Pan B-Senior Transponadon

Tice ni. Pan C-Home DeiiveiM Meab-KDC9

Tttla III, Part C-Hame Oefcveted Meals

TWe 111. Pan C-Congregate
Title ill. Pan C-Grab and Go Meets
NSIP

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER

CMd Care & De<totopmeni Block Grant
ARPAGhiU Cere & Oevelocment Block Grant
CNU Care Mandatory S lAateNng Fixids o( Itie CCOF

MEOICAID CLUSTER

Medical Assistance Program
Modicai Assislance Program • Veterans

STLT Health Department Response to Pubke Heelth or Healthcare Criaes
Family Pttmmg • Services
Maternal, infam. & Earty Cnildhocd Home visiting Program
Nattortai Family Cereglm Suppot Tide ill, Part E-Serviee Link
Special Programa lor Aging, Title iV-Setviee Lirk
Slata Health Iramnea Aasstanca Program
Medicate Enroftnent Assistance Program

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Special Suppl. Nmitton Program tar Women, Infants & ChHren
Senior Farmers Market

ChU & AiUl Cara Food Program

CHILD NUTRmON CLUSTER

Stftner Ftxxl Service Program For Crddren

ASSISTANCE USTWG

NUMBER

93.6CD

93.600

93.600

93668

93.668

93.568

93.568

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR'S NAME

93.499

93.569

93.569

93.556

93.558

93.044

93.045

93 045

93.045

93.045

93.053

93.575

93.575

93 596

93.778

93.778

93.391

•93.217

93.670

93.052

93.048

93.324

93.071

10.557

10.576

10.558

Sate oi New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State ol New Hempsfuta
Slate of New Hamcshire

Stata of New Hampshire

Stats of New Hampahlre
State of New Harrpehire

Stats of New Hampshire

Stata of New HanvsTM
State ol New Hanvshre

State of New Hampehn
Slate of New Hampshire
State ot New Hamperire
Stata of New Hampshire
Stato of New Hampsnre
StAa of New Hempshre

State of New Hampshre
State of New KampsKre
State of New Hampshire

Stata of New Hampahira
Gateways Community Servioes

Sutsof New

State of New

Sute of New

State of ffew

State of New

State of New
Stale of New

Hampshre
Hampshre

Hampshre

Hampshre
Hampshre

Hampshre
Hamistwe

Stata of New Hampshire

Stata of New Hanvshire
Stata of New Hampahre

State of New Hampshire

01CK2052-03-Ot

01851000622

1HE000387-01-Ot

CLUSTER TOTAL

02-52-52-S2001G18870000

02-S2-52>52001G244600CIO

02-S2-52-S20010-35400000

02-52-52^20010-24400000
TOTAL

<12-52-52-24520000

2001NHCSC3

200tNKCSC3

TOTAL

0545M8M6101G02S5

2001NHTANF

200INKTANF

TOTAL

17AANHT3SS

210tNKCMC6

2101NHCMCe

2101NHCMC6

210tNHCMC6
1056477

CLUSTER TOTAL

NONE PROVIDED

NONE PROVIDED

CLUSTER TOTAL

OCINWPG0006-01-00

CLUSTER TOTAL

NH700T000031

FPHPPAO16063

X10MC335SS

200tNH0AFC-O2

90MPQ24t02

90SA0003G2-00
200INHMISH-00

HKS TOTAL

ISt54NK703Wt003 8 5003

194NH0e3Y83t4

NONE PROVIDED

NONE PROVIDED

FEDERAL

EXPENDflURES

4.918.443

82.597

347.070

5,348.110

PASSED THROUGH

TO SUBM^EqPIEKTS

5,383.170

3.207.214

177.356

437,212

9.204.952

385.693

183017

472549

249

1.211

1.460

151.605

83.419

754,067

143J218

68,237

l8L30a
1.38S.9S2

247.101

161.232
57.703

104.589

14.253

116,845

398.344

43.577

145.733

33.469

47,871

20,307
4.011

18.296.125

724.991

67.064

143.641

148.742

Sie Notea to Schedule of Expenditure# of Faderal Awards
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FEDCRAL QRAKTOfU

ppOgRAMTfTLg

FOOD OtSTRtBUTION CLUSTER

CaRvnoditjr Supplernentai Foort Progfam
Camrnod-ty Suppl«n«nai Food Program

Emerganoy Food AHStanca Piogratn-Artnlnblfaton
Emargancy Food Assiranea Pcogram

CORPORATION FOR WATTOWAL A COMMUWrPf SERVtCBS

FOSTER ORANDPAREKTS/SENIOR COMPANION CLUSTER
Sarte Companion ProTam

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Fommla Grant* for Rural Area>Coneord Trartsii

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Enhancad MoDlrty of Sarior* S Ind, WfDttabilU**-CAT
Enhancad McOHity of Sanior* & Ind. W/Disa0lllti**-(4id Stata Tramportawn
Enhaiteed MoOiity of Senior* i Ind. W/Obabllldes-Voluntaar Driver*

US DEPARTMENT OF HOUStNO AND URBAN OEVELOPWEWT

ASSISTANCE LISTING

wmber

10.565

10.565

10.568

10.569

S

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR'S NAME

Emergency Solution* Grant
CV-Emargancy Solutions Gram

SuDportM Houstng

Continuum of Care Program

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

liJA-WaatharizasionAssistancaforLnirlncoma Paraon*

Waatherization Assistartee lor Low IrKoma Parson*

US DEPARTMENT OP LABOR

Sanior Community Sarvica Employmant Program

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

20.513

20.513
20.513

14.231

14.231

14.235

14.267

81.042
61.042

tata of New Hampthira
Stata of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
Stala ol New Hampshre

State of New Hecnpshire-Depertment of Transportation

S*A(e of New Hampshim-Oepartment of Transportation
S»ie of New HampshsO'Oepartment of Transportation
Merriyiack County

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hamwhra

Stata ot New Hampthire

Stata of New Hampshira

Stata of New Hampshire
Stata of New Hampshire

Stata of New Hampshire

Coronavirus $-,aie and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 NHHousing

Emergency RerttarAssistance Program 21.023 Merrlmack County
Emergency Rental Assistance Pro^m 21.023 NH Housing ERAPl

Emergency Rental Assistance Program 21.023 NHHous^ ^P2
Emergency Rental Assistance Program 21.023 NH Housing
Emeiganey Rental Assiataixe Program 21.023 NH Housing HSS

Emergency Ren-jsl Aasistance Program - 21.023 NH Houshg

NON-FEDERAL

NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBUC UTtUTIES COMPANY

Eiecttlcaj Assistance Program

204NK8I4Y8005

204NH814Y8005

61750000
61750000

CLUSTER TOTAL

USDA TOTAL

' 16SCANHC101

CNCS TOTAL

NH-18-X043

NH-18-X043
NH-6S-X001

CLUSTER TOTAL

DOT TOTAL

05-95-42-423010-7827

05-95-42-423010-7827

TOTAL

05-05-42-423010-7927-102-600731

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731

HUD TOTAL

a-u-si-maismOMMTiaearsi

o-st-u-inBiasseooeoorieeaHr

IX>E TOTAL

1044701

DOL TOTAL

SLFRP0145

Cotd Wsatfier Funds

ERAOOI2 end ERA0435

ERAOOt2 end ERA0435

ERAEOIig

Housing Stabfity

US TREASURY TOTAL

TOTAL

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

452.641

250.749

- 489;79l
5.651,018

7.044.399

S S 128.857'

s 322.224

s 322JS4

s 623.473

a3.428

28,781
64.959

176.166

S 709.641

$ 105.839
234.464

340.403

se.oss

125.030

s 521.468

5 35.962

288.813

S 324.795

6 337.303

6 337.303

S 2.872.652

22.929
15,913.208

12,651,566

459.514

14,846

79.565

S 29,141.710

S 32.014.362

$ 50,744,795

t 1,»S3,M»

PASSED THROUGH

TO SUB-RECIPIENTS

452,641

33.528

5.851,016
6.337.387

6.337.387

6.337J87

See Note* to the Schedule ef ExpendRurae ol Federal Awaida
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

NOTE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28, 2023. The information in this Schedule Is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Unifonn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the .Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected to use
the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Sfanc/ands issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28. 2023, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 14, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and perforrping our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statenients, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc.'s internal control.

■ A deficiency In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is. a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify .all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

26



Docuagn Envelope ID; 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-B780-FF88731BC19F

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,.
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to" be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
September 14, 2023

27



Docusign Envelope ID; O2CCCDF0-O1CD-4442-B78O-FF88731BC19F

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROIISSIONALAJSOCIATIOS

CiiRTIFIEl) PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

nO\'ER • WOLFEfWRO
NQRHi CONVCAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement thai
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2023.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained \n Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for FedemI
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties. Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemmenf
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, ■ Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

.  • Obtain an understanding of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control, over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
'than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that have
not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
September 14, 2023
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COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
.  section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include: U.S. Department of the Treasury,
Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023, Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds, ALN 21.027, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Women, Infants and
Children, ALN 10.557, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Head Start, ALN
93.600, New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Electrical Assistance Program, NGN-
Federal.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,822,344.

9. Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

RNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Effective 1/2024

sO*
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chris Pyles, Chair
Board member since: 1/14/2021

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

David Croft, Vice Chair
Board member since: 5/13/2021

Dennis Martino

Board member since: 2/24/2005

A. Bruce Carri, Treasurer
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Ashley Reed
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Safiya Wazir, Secretary
Board member since: 11/2/2016

David Siff, Esq.
Board member since: 10/2/2013

Heather Brown

Board member since: 1/15/2009

Tracy Vergason
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Current fiscal year (3/1/24 - 2/28/25) board meetings - 3/14/24, 5/09/24, 9/12/24,11/14/24,1/11/25

klh;CAPBM BOD 10 2023 redacted
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Cody Balestrieri

Experienced Manufacturing Professional seeking the start of a new
career

Experienced professional beginning a new chapter in my career.

Authorized to work in the US for any employer Work Experience
Quality Inspector

Optometrics - Ayer, MA June 2022 to January 2023

• Ensure that raw material and products conform to the customer's specifications. • Inspection of

incoming material, and maintain records

• Maintain records of non informing material

• Evaluate non-conforming material and returned product.

• Assist in conducting internal audit

• Coordinate and maintain changes of controlled documents, including releasing and obsoletlng.
Driver

Uber - Massachusetts / New Harnpshire December 2016 to Present

• Pick up customers and drive them to their destination in a timely, and professional manner. •
Provide customer service such as restaurant recommendations, as well as nourishments.

• Navigate language barriers with professionalism.

• Maintain cleanliness of vehicle as well as

assuring its prime condition.
• Time management and schedule creation

• Troubleshooting technology and using it to identify the fastest routes.

R&D Operator

Entegris - Bedford, MA April 2015 to April 2022

I have worked for about seven years as an R&D.operator for a large globally operated
manufacturing company. My main job functions are as follows:

• Extensive hours, spent in a leadership role as a clean room operator.

• Follow all clean room guidelines and procedures while setting an example for team members

to do the same.

• Train and team-build groups of new temps and interns while serving as a lead point person for
company policies and procedures.

• Delegate tasks among operators and held open communication to assure all the work was

completed timely and efficiently.

• Manage data and record information while actively testing products and checking for quality
and compliance.

• Coordinate with engineers as a member of a multidisciplinary team and work towards meeting
coriipany and team goals.

• Manage a high pressure and evolving schedule that revolves around meeting deadlines and

producing quality, functional mechanical parts in an efficient manner.
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• Adapt to new policies and procedures as well as the use of new and different tools. I have

experience in operating various machinery such as welding and particle leak detectors as well
as typical office software and computer programming.
• Coordinate with multiple departments throughout the company when needed to complete job-
related tasks efficiently.

Security Guard

Guardsmark - Woburn, MA April 2012 to June 2015
• Maintained safety and security as a contracted officer at a commercial business.

• Covered the front desk as needed and worked as a receptionist.
• Managed high-volume traffic flow of the building while practicing integrity and enforcing all
business and company procedures.

Education

High school diploma

Chelmsford High School - Chelmsford, MA

2001 to 2005

SNHU - currently enrolled for BS program. 1st year
Skills

• Leadership

• Public speaking

• Product Development

• Manufacturing

• Research & Development • Welding

• Laboratory Experience
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Dani Spaulding

Willing to relocate to: Manchester, NH - Concord. NH

-Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Data & Compliance Manager
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack-Concord. NH

April 2023 to Present

Primary role is to enhance the quality of services delivery, reduce risks, gain efficiencies and assurance
procedures for various programs within the agency with a focus on Housing Stabilization and Energy
programs. I provide administrative and quality assurance support within specific grants and responsible
for working in conjunction with management on software initiatives.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:

• Works in partnership with the Director of Strategy and Planning and Director of Energy and Area
Resource Centers to provide analysis of current systems and processes and makes recommendations
for quality Improvement.

• Evaluate program components, to maintain and improve program quality, including all proposed
program changes and modifications.

• Utilizes various databases and computer systems for data analysis.

• Compiles and maintains accurate records for program statistics, financial reports, and various
spreadsheets.

• Supports the Director of Strategy and Planning and the Housing Stabilization and Street Outreach
Manager during the grant application process and preparation for yearly audits. Ensures all required
reporting deadlines are met.

• Develops expertise in the statewide computer system utilized by the Energy Assistance department.

• Works in partnership with New Hampshire Electric Assistance Program Director in tracking and
monitoring IT requests for system issues.

• Participates with Director of Strategy and Planning and Agency Leadership in reviewing, planning,
and implementing new software system for the Agency. Including roll out of new software and ongoing
training and technical support needed toll programs using the software.

• Maintains direct communication with both Program Directors for the purpose of information sharing,
program development and initiatives. Works in conjunction with management on whole family approacn
initiatives.

• Strategic Planning: Research, analyze, and use of critical thinking skills to help develop business
strategy and initiatives, that align with business goals and objectives.

• Works in partnership with the CFO with role out of new fiscal software.

• Collect, clean, and interpret data sets to assist in decision making process.

• Responsible for CSBG data and reports.

• Uses the ROMA Cycle

• Create and track match opportunities

• Crossed trained in multiple programs in order to assist when needed.

Housing Stabilization Manager
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.-Concord, NH .
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March 2021 to June 2023

• Over sees the New Hampshire emergency rental assistance program and Housing Stability Program

• Comply with Agency Policy and Procedures

• Manages a staff of up to 34 & Training

• Generate Reports

• Maintains knowledge of federal; state and agency policies and procedures for effective implementation
of program goals and objectives

• HMIS certified

• Quality control (fraud and overpayment prevention)

• Approve applications submitted by staff for final review

• Import client applications

• Case management

• Customer Service

Loss control certification for completing the loss control course to prevent work place injury

Completed manager boot camp at UNH

Housing Stabilization Coordinator
Community Action Program-Concord, NH

July 2020 to March 2021

• HMIS certified

• Understanding state data entry site

• Making sure all grant requirements are met with the client.

•  Understanding the grant regulations and guidelines. Case work and follow up on required
documentation.

• Completing purchase order with required proofs.

• Cross helping client through different programs (esq, . Hhrif, ehp, etc.) and referrals to outside
organizations such as financial wellness, food security, joo hunting info, creating case action plans.

• Knowledge of housing programs; RRH, EHP, HDSG, HHRALF, ESG

• UCARE COVID Relief Fund; extensive knowledge on program guidelines, required documents need and
processing procedures

• Homeless prevention

• Knowledge of housing standards and fair market value

• Case management with clients; making budgets, offering outside resource information

• data entry

• PIT Count

• Homeless Street outreach

Administrative Manager
Steele Hill Resorts

October 2019 to June 2020

Administrative duties such as:

• Maintaining and filing paper work

• Training staff/coach

• Hiring

• Organization & handling office paperwork

• Create incentives for employees

• Processing Payments
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• Directing calls to appropriate departments and representatives

• working closely with the reservations department to make sure guests have appropriate
accommodations

• Testing Software and new promotions

• Sold timeshare over phone /

• Data entry

• Quality assurance

• Corresponding with guests through email and over the phone

• Revising current scripts that staff use

• Customer service

• Monitoring staff by leading the sales floor or pulling calls

I also was the assistant to the call center Director of Promotions and-Marketing. I would help various
office projects as needed.

Call Center Supervisor
Seele Hill Resorts-Sanbornton, NH

February 2016 to June 2020

As call center supervisor I have many jobs to do throughout the day. I take over my representative calls
to speak with the guest about the promotion they signed up for ana make sure they know all the term of
the promotion and send the proper paper work out.l also get incoming calls from guest where I provide
excellent customer service skills to handle the call on what ever it might be. I handle rescheduling guest
reservation dates. I also have a floor to keep an eye on. I make sure my representatives stay focused
but also up beat and positive! Plus I make my own calls to perspective guest where my persuasive sales
skills come in handy making me one of the company's top bookers. I use a computer daily so I am tech
savy! I loved working here which really showed when I got promoted to the supervisor position after only
working there for 6 months.

Customer Service Associate

Hannaford

2012 to 2014

Education

Bachelor's degree in Business Administration with a focus in Public
Administration, Minor in Organizational Leadership and Minor in Finance
Southern New Hampshire University - Manchester. NH

June 2022 to Present

High School Deploma in General
Kingswood Regional Highschool - Wolfeboro, NH

January 2013 to January 2014

Skills

• Microsoft Office (6 years)

• Microsoft Word (6 years)

• Microsoft Excel (2 years)

• Customer Service Skills (10+years)
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Positive

Hard Working

Time Management Skills

Reliable

Punctual

Enthusiastic

Filing

Organization

Sales (4 years)

Supervisor (7 years)

Scheduling

Customer Service

Marketing

training

Office Management

Telemarketing

Management (3 years)

Case Management (3 years)

Microsoft Outlook

Social Work

Homeless outreach (2 years)

Crisis Intervention (3 years)

Leadership

Landlord-tenant law

Fair Housing regulations

Negotiation

Quality Assurance

Software Testing

Internal Audits

Strategic planning (1 year)

Data analysis skills (3 years)

Program Management

Data Visualization

Awards

Job Shadow- Medical Field
March 2012

I  have job shadowed in a couple diffrent medical department's, Spear Memorial Hospital for
anesthesiology and then Huggins Hosptial in 2013-2014 for PACU which is a day surgery wing. I interacted
with patients and sat in on tneir surgeries.
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Quarterly Award for Excellence
March 2018

There are 4 awards giving each quarter. You have to get nominated and then selected out of all the
nominations. It's an award for doing outstanding work and you get $175 bonus as well.

Alpha Sigma Lambda
September 2024

Sigma Psi Chapter

Delta Mu Delta

October 2024

Gamma Nu Chapter

Certifications and Licenses

HMIS

January 2021

HMIS is the state data entry site for homelessness.

HMIS Data Analytics Course
March 2024 to Present

• Understand how to develop a data analysis plan

• Understand how to. prep and transform raw data

• Build skills such as pivot tables, filters, and slicers to analyze and interpret data

• Data visualization best practices

• Understand how to develop engaging data communications for stakeholders such as data briefs and
communication plans

Homeless Training
December 2023 to Present

Techniques and skills needed to back up coworkers during conflict and conflict resolution

Techniques and skills for managing problematic clients and their behaviors

Nationally Certified ROMA Implementer
May 2024 to May 2025

Assessments

Customer service — Proficient

June 2020

Identifying and resolving common customer issues

Full results: Proficient

Indeed Assessments provides skills tests that are not indicative of a license or certification, or continued
development in any professional field.
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Elizabeth Heyword

Summary Dynomic and motivated leader and Strategic professional with extensive experience in
community relations, Strategy and planning, social media marketing, grant writing,
fundraising, board relations and donor relations. Skilled in building cross-functional teams,
and community partnerships. Exceptional communicator and critical thinker.

Experience

2/M/2022-CufTent

Director of Strategy and Plonning- Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimock Counties Inc.

Facilitate the Agency's annual and strategic planning efforts.
Partner with Senior Leadership on oil operational and strategic issues as they arise:
Provide stiotegic recommendations to Senior Leadership based on community needs
assessment, CSBG, organizational standards, compliance and regulations
Develop and rnonitor the Agency-wide.Strategic Plan and/or the Community Action Plan.
Research grants opportunities from government ond non-government agencies.
Responsible for the organization-wide comprehensive risk ossessment and report to senior
Leadership and governing board.
Collect ond analyze program data to create Agency annuol report
Monitor and review the Organizational Standords.
Work with programs in the development of grant and tunding proposals •
Assist CEO/COO with.marketing, public relations and special events as requested
Liaise with exterrial stakeholders; community partners, and funders as requested
Oversight of all the Agency's Housing Stobilization Progroms
Responsible for all agency social media and marketing including Facebook, Linkedin, and
newsletters.

8/2017-2/13/2022

Commur>tty Services Director- Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimock Counties

Management of Fuel ond Electric Progroms
Managernent of Housing Stabilization Programs
Responsible for securing Federal, State. County and Town funding for all programs.
Oversight of 30 staff in 6 area centers through Belknop and Merrimock Counties
Oversight of 5 food pantries.
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Emergency Management Udison
ROMA (Result Oriented MonagemenI Accountobility) Implemenler

June 20U-August 2017

Director of Mission Advancement-Great Bay Services

Responsible for all aspects of mission advancement including, annual appeals, fundraising. donor
relations, stewordstiip, planned giving, grant writing, donor database management, board training
ond management and budgets.
Responsible for mariceting and social media relations, and monltily newsletter.

March 2015-June-2016-D]rector of Community Relotions-Great Boy Services

September 2013-March 2015- Associate Director of Programs and Sen/ices-Great Bay Services
October 2011 -August 2013-Program Manager for Employment Services- Great Bay Services
November 2008-October 2011 • Community Employment Coordinotor-Great Boy Services

Education MBA in Leaderstiip: SNHU, Manctiester. NH
Graduate Certificate in Leaderstiip in a Not for Profit: SNHU. Manctiester, NH
Bactielor of Science in Business Administration Hesser College, Mancliester, NH
Associate Degree in Public Relations: Hesser College, Manctiesler, NH

Skills/Trainings

Boords

Case Summer Institute (2016). Association of Fundraising Professional Conferences (2017, 2018). NH
Ctiaritable Foundation Grants Institute (2019), Constant Contact, Donor Perfect, Microsoft Suite.
ROMA Certified 2018. Strategic Performance Management Certificate from Suffolk University. (2022)

Great Bay Services Board of Trustees-20I7-Present. Epping Community Church Board of Trust 2013-
Present.
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Coordinated Entry Specialist

PROFILE

Professional Administrative/Customer Service

facilitator with over 20 years of experience.

Employing exceptional relationship building

abilities to cultivate rapport and collaboration

among clients, staff, and management. Highly

developed communicator with-outstanding

capabilities in complex problem-solving and
conflict resolution. Excellent project and

organizational skills.

SKILLS -

Case Management

Housing placement/navigation

Benefits assistance

Customer service

Conflict resolution

Team collaboration

Project organization

Time management

Motivational interviewing

Intermediate MS Office Suite knowledge

Adobe

CRM and office management software

Scheduling and calendar management

Records management systems

NOTARY PUBLIC, New Hampshire Exp.2026

EDUCATION

Medical Assistant

National Education Center, Anaheim," CA

ACTIVITIES AND HONORS

Certificate of Appreciation -

Community Action Program, Belknap-

Merrimack Counties, Inc. 2022-2023

Volunteer various Street outreach 1998-2016

Volunteer Leader of Data group 2011

Volunteer Assimilation Coordinator 20.10

Employee of the Month (AppleOne) 2009

EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Co. Inc.

Concord, NH (Grant program)

Coordinated Entry Specialist 5/2024 - Current

•  Efficiently assessed and triaged individuals

experiencing homelessness, determining their

immediate needs and eligibility for housing

programs.

•  Collaborated with a multidisciplinary team,

including social workers, case managers, and

housing providers, to develop comprehensive

housing plans tailored to each client's unique

circumstances.

•  Navigated complex housing systems and

advocated for clients to secure stable housing
solutions, including Rapid Re-Housing, and

Permanent Supportive Housing.

•  Provided essential support services such as

housing counseling, benefits assistance, and

referrals to community resources.

•  Maintained accurate and up-to-date client

records in a case management database,

ensuring compliance with program guidelines

and reporting requirements.

•  Utilized strong problem-solving and critical

thinking skills to address complex challenges

.  and barriers faced by clients.

•  Demonstrated excellent interpersonal and

communication skills to build rapport with

clients and effectively collaborate with diverse

stakeholders.

Housing Support Specialist 7/2023 - 5/2024

•  Provided housing support services to low-

income and homeless individuals and families.

•  Assisted clients with housing searches,

applications, and lease negotiations.

•  Provided referrals to community resources and

social services.

•  Conducted comprehensive housing assessments

to identify client needs and eligibility for

housing programs.

•  Developed and implemented individualized

housing plans for clients.

•  Advocated for clients with landlords and

property managers for affordable housing.

•  Maintained accurate and up-to-date client

records.



Docusign Envelope ID; 02CCCDFB-01CD-4442-8780-FF88731BC19F

•  Managed a caseload of complex housing cases,

including those with mental health and

substance abuse issues.

•  Successfully assisted clients into permanent

housing.

Housing Stabilization Navigator

6/2022-7/2023

•  Temporary position hired to permanent.

•  Conduct intakes for HMIS and other programs.

•  Create case plan with client and follow up.

•  Assist clients In applying for programs and

services as needed.

•  Maintain communication on case management

and case plan goals.

•  Research programs needed by clients.

•  Gather information on services and systems in

New. Hampshire for homeless clients.

•  Collect, compile, and maintain data and

statistics.

•  Track program outcomes and data.

Claims Specialist

EBPA/Cobalt Group LLC, Exeter, NH

7/2021-5/2022

•  Customer Service up to 45 calls in 4 hours.

•  Process tuition applications 95% accuracy.

Administrative Assistant

Granite Financial Partners, Milford, NH

3/2021-5/2021

Administrative Assistant

The Nagler Group, Bedford, NH

7/2020-2/2021

•  Temporary for various companies

•  Digital file organization including creation and

tracking of projects.

•  Download, and review plans for quotes to

estimators.

•  Create proposals within daily deadlines.

•  Provide administrative support.

Office Clerk

Best Ford and Best Cycle Center, Nashua, NH

3/2018-6/2020

Accounting of 20-60 motorcycle deals per

month.

Process 30 plus titles daily to the state.

Administer new warranty policies, cancellations,

and refunds.

Develop tracking to resolve error issues.

Develop and maintain procedure manuals.

Delivering helpful and kind customer service to

maximize customer satisfaction.

•  Assist new on-boarding employees. Maintain

confidentiality.

Careglver (Daily care of elderly family member.)

Patricia Kinville, Nashua, NH

1/2017-3/2018

Scheduler (in home, non-medical care agency)
Comfort Keepers, Orange, CA

3/2014-5/2016
Utilize scheduling software: matching caregiver
qualifications and availability to clients' needs.

Communicate assignments and schedule 100

caregivers and 150 clients.

Coordinate with Care Manager and Human

Resources Administrator to resolve conflicts.

Assembly and organization of data for.

reporting.

Implement new system and training.

Contract Writer/Customer Service/Processor

Auction.com, Irvine, CA

8/2013-2/2014

■  Manage up to 50 client calls per day.

Manage customer conflict with minimal

assistance.

Generate agreements and documents for

completion of file within time limit.

Client Services Manager

Kirby Wealth Management, Brea, CA

6/2010-4/2013

•  Manage 150 clients and two advisors.

Initiate and implement change of office's

portfolios within four months.

•  Develop and implement a tracking system for

time sensitive events.

■  Manage special projects and marketing events.

Executive Administrative Assistant

AppleOne Employment,

Client: Disney, Parks and Resorts, Anaheim, CA

1/2008-12/2009
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'  Book commercial talent (contacting agents,

setting recording sessions, and processing

contracts).

•  Create and maintain spreadsheets and develop

.  administrative reports for budgeting of

upcoming commercials.

•  Plan and execute corporate meetings, lunches,

and special events for groups of 20-100

•  Schedule travel arrangements, including hotel,

airfare, and ground transportation.

•  Organize and schedule meetings using video

teleconference.

•  Answer phones and emails with efficiency and

appropriate responses.

Division Administrative Assistant

Mark Company (Pipeline Division), Orange, CA

11/2006-2/2008

•  Initiate and implement reporting and project

tracking. ,

■  Project coordination, preparation, and material

quotes.

•  Develop and maintain administrative reports.
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FREEMAN TOTH

' Resulis-orienicd leader with strong background in hiring, training, management and employee development.

Exceptional conununication and coacliing skills. Effectively motivates employees through consistent feedback,

positive reinforcement and leading by example.

HIGHLIGHTS

- Employee onboarding, development and retention - New product launches and trainings - Team building - Multi
media training program development - Fluent in "Eani ilie Right Sales" process -

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

- Successfully managed all functions related to daily, operations of a retail organization. Duties include recruiting, interviewing,
hiring and onboarding, the development and implementation of training programs and performance management plans that
consistently yield positive results.

- Served in multiple leadership roles, working closely witli the executive team to establish organizational goals and maintain
forward momentum for the company.

- Worklbrcc management and scheduling oversight for multiple locations including over 50 associates and managers.

- Orchestrated regular meetings and trainings focused on sales best practices and exceeding company and individual goals

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program of Belknap/Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Concord, NH Homeless Outrcaeh & Housing Stabilization Manager 2/2019 to Current.

As a Homeless Outrcaeh & Housing Stabilization Maiiager my responsibilities include Managing a team
responding to referrals from NH 2-1-1 Services with the goal of providing advice, services and assistance to people
experiencing Homelessness or to those whom are at risk of becoming homeless. A typical day may include Visiting
with local shelters, welfare officers, food pantries and homeless resource centers and homeless people in an effort to

ingratiate myself while building rapport and trust vwth the local homeless population.

Waltham Traders/IM Wireless

Salcm, NH District Manager/Trainer 2/2017 to 10/2018

Hire, onboard and manage multiple associates and managers for multiple high-volume locations throughout New England.
Developed and implemented company training programs and assisted with Uie opening of multiple high-profile locations.

GoWireless LLC/INC.

Derry, NH Manager 3/2015 to 1/2017

Directly developed and managed a large team of sales professionals while overseeing daily operations of the location. Served in a
critical role during a company acquisition, contributing to a successful transition with minima! operational disruption.

Bedford, NH Sales Manager/Area Manager 02/2002 to 3/2015

Responsibilities included working in conjunction with the executive team to recruit, interview and hire new consultants and
managers while successfully managing multiple high-volume locations. Specialized in building rapport with customers; earning
their trust and creating lifelong customers.

EDUCATION - Kcenc State College, Kecnc, NH
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Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communicarion skills: written, verbal and presentational. Adept
in coaching and mentoring employees and colleagues as evidenced by my selection by tlic National Office of Head .Start to

serve as a mentor for new Head Stait Directors. Committed to continuous improvement of activitie.s to ensui-e they meet
outcomes approved by the board through sti-ategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with all

local, state and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Chief. Executive Officer 2018-present

Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission
Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and financial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and
that all program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.
Provide leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board
Establish sound \vorking relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs.
See that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs. .

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and hiutrition Operations Director 2016 -2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infant and Children, and
Literacy Programs, as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

• ■ Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

•  . Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director

•  Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; impleihent and manage operational
plans

Director of Child Development Programs 2001-2016

•  Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center
Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff . .

•  Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and
improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

•  Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

•  Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities, and
transportation
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•  Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements

Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customerexpectations
•  Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher

education, and other community agencies and partners

•  Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in
compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Director for Child Development Programs 1999-2001

•  Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,
milestones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices

•  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
•  Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monitoring compliance throughout

program operations

•  Developed and implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction with
Governing Board, Policy Council

•  Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in meaningful oral or written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager/Education Manager 1997-1999
•  Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers
•  Coordinate personal and professional development and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff

progress towards educational requirements as supported by the Performance Standards
•  Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance

Improvement Plans when warranted.

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager 1995 -1997
•  Supervised, mentored, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff
•  Communicated areas of performance iitiprovement to staff and promote training that reflected individual

needs of staff members and the team as a whole

•  Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local licensing agencies and grant requirements

New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH
Instructor 1995-1997

•  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program

•  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
•  Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration June 2017

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education - 1981
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il l Lesmerises

Profile

Experienced and self-motivated Accounting Professional bringing forth over 30 years of
valuable progressive non-profit experience. Looking for an opportunity to use my non-profit
experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash management,

bank reconciliations, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable, payroll, audit
preparation, budget prepariation, monitoring subreclpients, 403B pension compliance and audit
preparation, employee benefits; and system implementations.

Employment Experience

10/21-Present

Chief Fiscal Officer. Community Action Program Belknap-Merriniack Counties. Inc.

CAPBM is a not-for-profit with 25 million in revenue with 11 legal entities. The Agency has over 300

employees and holds 8 million in assets.

Oversee the dally activities of 6 fiscal staff, conduct budget meetings, prepare work papers for annual

audit for agency and 10 housing projects, manage the daily cash flow of the agency and 10 housing
projects, prepare paperwork for monitorings conducted by various funding sources, and review

accounts payable input, journal entries, accounts receivable Input, and monthly billings.

10/17-12/21

Senior Accountant. Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services is a not-for-profit with 49 million In revenue with 30 legal

entities. The Agency has over 400 employees and holds 84 million in assets.

Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding sources monthly, prepare work papers for

annual audit, monitor subrecipients, prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various

funding sources, review accounts payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for

accounts payable and fuel assistance payable positions, prepare surveys for various

governmental agencies, prepare ACA forms, prepare paperwork for 403B annual audit and file
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5500, member and secretary of the 403B Committee, instrumental in getting PaperSave up and

running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

11/02-10/17

Staff Accountant. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.

At the time of my employment, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties was a not-for-

profit with 20 million in revenue. The Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 million in assets.

Reconciled 36 bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepared work papers for annual

audit, prepared paperwork for monitoring by various funding sources, prepared and entered

journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, reviewed daily accounts payable Input,

entered cash receipts in A/R system, provided backup for both payroll and accounts

payable/receivable positions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff
members

1/00 - 9/02

Account Supervisor (for 2 Companies). Whole Life. Inc.

Whole Life, inc. is a not-for-profit with 6 million in revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and

held over 4 million in assets.

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports, yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and

cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and
billed Medicaid

9/98-i/00

Account Receivable Clerk (for 4 Companies). CSN Financial. Inc.

Coded cash receipts, prepared monthly invoices, and prepared accounts receivable and

revenue work papers

5/93 - 9/98

Assistant Controller. Biosvstems. Inc.

Collected past due accounts receivable both foreign and domestic, provided switchboard relief,

handled petty cash funds, audited salesmen expenses, cut accounts payable checks, prepared

journal entries, performed payroll functions
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3/88-5/93

Business Officer. The Caring Community of Connecticut. Inc.

The Caring Cpmmunity of Connecticut is a not-for-profit with 18 million in revenue.

Answered phones, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds, typed correspondence,

coded cash receipts and disbursements, reconciled bank accounts, screened job applicants,

prepared work papers, and participated in administrator on-call program

Educational Background

1996-2000

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Eastern Connecticut State University

Graduated cum laude

1992-1996

Associate Degree in Accounting, Three Rivers Community Technical College

Named to Dean's list, graduated with high honors

1981-1985

Merrimack Valley High School

Member of National Honor Society, named to Honor Roll for 3 years

Volunteer Work

1/17-Present

Director on The Loudon Communications Council

Council is responsible for the distribution of a monthly newspaper to the residents of Loudon
and to maintain the Town of Loudon NH website.. Also served as Treasurer of the Council for 2

years.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

Department of Health and Human Services

Bureau of Human Services

Continuum of Care

KEY PERSONNEL

Name Job Title Salary % Paid

from this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Jeanne Agri Chief Executive Officer $145,916.10 0% 0.00

Jill Lesmerises Chief Fiscal Officer $108,927.00 0% 0.00

Beth Heyward Director of Strategic
Planning

$79,501.50 0% 0.00 .

Freeman Toth Flousing Stabilization &
Homeless Outreach

Manager

$49,588.50 10% $4,958.85

Linda Kinville Housing Stabilization
Coordinator

$43,602.00 100% $43,602

Cody Balestrieri Housing Stabilization
Coordinator

$43,602 100% $43,602

Dani Spaulding Data and Compliance
Manager

$58,558 0 $0
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CXJNCORD.NH 03301
603-271-9544 1.800-S52-3345 ExL 9544

Ftx:603-27M332 TDD Accm: I•800-735-2964 www.dhhs:iih.gov

May 30. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Chrfstopher t. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUEStED ACTION

Authonze the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source contract with Community Action Program Belknap and Merrlmack
Counties. lnc. (VC#177203) Concord. NH in the amount of $1,463,716 for the provision of a
housing services continuum of care project, with the option to renew for up to four (4) additional
years, effective July 1, 2023. upon Governor ̂ d Council approval, through November 30. 2027.
100% Federal Funds. * ,

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 through 2028, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, If needed and justified.
05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Total

Amount

2024 074-500585 Grants for .Pub Asst and Relief TED $286,952

2025 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $365,929

2026 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $385,929

2027 074-500565 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $365,929

2028 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $78,977

Total $1,463,716

EXPLANATION

This request is Solo Source because federal regulations require all procurement efforts
to be directed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) which
the Department tospecify the vendor's name during the annual, federal, Continuum of Care (CoC)
competitive application process for up to a year prior to the grant award being issued. As the
Collaborative Applicant, the Department Is required to Issue a Request for Proposals.^rough the
Continuum, based on the HUD CoC Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO). HUD
reviews and scores vendor applications based on federal rank and review policy, and sconng
tools, created to match the federal NOFO. HUD subsequently awards funding base^on strict
federal cnteria specifying eligible activities, populations to be served, expected performance
outcomes, and time frames for the application competiUon and subsequent Departmental
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.-oareements. The Department receives notification of the awards and signed grant ̂ reemenls
from HUD several months later; at which time agreements, such^ the one contained-ln this
request, can be executed.

A total of approximately 8 households will be served, at any given time annually, through
the Permanent Housing projects, and a range of 100-500 may be served through the Coordinated,
Entry project.

Using the federally required Housing First model, the Contractor will provide a housing
services continuum of care project that Includes the following categories:
. Pftrmanent Supportive Housing (PSH) services that deliver long-term rental and leasing

assistance for participants with a disability, as defined by The U.S. Department
Urban Development (HUD). PSH includes supportive services designed to rneet the individual
needs of program participants without being a prerequisite for rental or leasing assistance:

. r^nrrtinfltftrt Fntrv (CE) services that ensure the implementation, and daily operation, of a
structured system. In accordance with CoC Program rules, for admitting, pnontizing and
assessing the housing, supportive services and case management needs of program
participants. CE utilizes a trauma-informed approach and active techniques, such as street
outreach, to ensure individualized services for diverse populations.

Additionally, the Contractor will work to maximize each participant's ability to live more
independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing annual repor^ provided by the
Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
■ agreements the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up tour (4) additional years
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer pemianent
housing options and supportive sewices available, leaving vulnerable
experiencing homelessness in unsafe .situations without needed support,
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Statewide

Source .of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267. FAIN. #
NH0096L1T002207, NH0157L1T002200.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
,  be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lorl A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

Tfu Dcpartmtnt ofHtolih and Human Struiett'Mission ii la join eemnumitUs and families
in providins oppdrtuniiiet for eiiixtns to ochieue health and indtpendene^-.



DocuSign Envelope ID; A7D8I1F1.954&^99E-«BD3-B3CB172DB45B .

Subject: Continuum of Cure CAPBIM (SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI.01)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Noiice: This'ogreeiiient and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 ConlrBCIor Name

Community Action Program Belknap and Mcrrimack
Counties, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

2 Industrial Park Drive

PC Box 1016 ■

Concord, NH 03302-1016

1.5 Contractor Phone

Nunjbcr

(603) 225-3295

1.6 Account Number

05-95^2-423010-

79270000

1.7 Completion Date

11/30/2027

1.8 Price Limitation

Jl.463,716

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature

^""OocuSioMd 8r;'

1 JuUAlAjL Ib^ ^S%'6/1023

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
3eanne Agri

Chief Executive officer

\. 13 SMe 'A*|^yf^Signatiirc
OeewSlffiwd bjr:

.  I Wjf- S- . '^/^b/2023

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja S. Fox

Director

1.15 Approv^by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
f— OoeuStoMil by;

By: . On;S/30/20Z3

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

C&Cltcm number: G&C Meeting Dale:

Page I of 4
<—08

Contractor Initials^—^
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
C'State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") lb perform, and the Contractor shall perfomt, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF'SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
E.xecutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, If applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the dale the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which cose the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be perfornted at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
efrcctivc, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
-.Contractor, for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary^ all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
svithout limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any slate or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or olhcrAvisc modifies the
appropriation or availabilit)' of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, If ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice, of such reduction or terniinalion.
The Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. ■

5.1 The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more partjcularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performonce hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Stale shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any anwunts
otherwise payable to the Contractoruiider this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7>c or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Nonvithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of (he Services, (he
CoiUracior shall comply with all applicable statutes, law^,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws, in addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as (he
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of (his Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees .or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the'covenants, terms and conditions of (his
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
nwessar)* to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, (he Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subconli;actor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
pcrfomi the Scr\'iccs to hire, any person who is a State employee
or ofTicial, who is materially Involved in the procurement,
administration or pcrfonnance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTiccr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the inlerpretaiion of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date 5/26/2023
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8. i Any one or more of (he following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon (he occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate niay
take any one, or ntore, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, cffcclivc two (2) days afler giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of. the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the' Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the Stale may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of ihcSiate to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement'for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days \yriiten notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement..
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Slate's discretion, deliver to the

Contracting OfTiccr, not later than fifiecn (15) days afler the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and .the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached-
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.t As used in this Agreement, llie word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video .
recordings, piciorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, meinorenda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that'purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propcrty.of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon tennlnatlon
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentialit)*of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other c.Nisting law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in.al| respects.
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, igenis or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compehsnlion or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or othenvisc transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State'at least fifieen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together, with its affilinles, becomes (he
direct or indirect owner of fifiy percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
In a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted bylaw,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims.

-  liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, Its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omisMetusof the.
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Conlractor, or subcontraclors, including bu( noi limited (o the
negligence, reckless or intentionni conduct. The State shnll not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13.Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute n waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agrecmcnl,

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 -The Contractor shall, at its sole c.xpense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insuitince;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and'$2,000,000 a^regalc
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagrcph.tO.2 herein, in an amount not less than
S0% of the whole replacement value of the property.
l4.2The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use In the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceriificatc(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
"Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cettificalefs) of insurance
for all rcnewal(s) of Insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificatc(s) of Insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are Incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and xs-arrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensaiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA-chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting O/Ticer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached.and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Conlractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Conlractor,
which might arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation lows in connection xviih the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shnll be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the lime
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates •
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AM ENDM ENT. This Agreement may be amended, xyaivcd
or discharged ouly by an instrunient In writing signed by the
•parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver"or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State ofNew Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Slate law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and conMrued in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and ho rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall conlrol.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed 16 confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughomthc Agreement are
for reference purposes.only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
inlerpreialion, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement..

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILrrV. Inthccvcntanyoflhcprovisionsofthis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiclion to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effecl.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Tills Agreement, which may be
executed In a number of counterparts, each of xvhich shall be
deemed an original,, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes alt prior
"agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions -

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1.. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended
as follows: - • .

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to
the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New
Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1, 2023 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3,3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years from
the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactol^ delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the Contractor
and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions. The Contractor shall have written agreements with, all
sObco.ntraclors, specifying the work to be performed, and if applicable; a
Business Associate Agreement in accordance with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act. Written agreements shall specify how
corrective action shall be managed. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective action as
necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with a list of all
subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify the State of any
inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-2024-D8H-06-CONTI-01 A-1.2

Community Action Pfogrom BelKnap and Menlmdck Counties. Inc. Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
5/26/2023



DocuSign Envelop* ID: A7DB11F1.9S4Md9E-8B03-B3CB172DB45B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CAPBM

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. Continuum of Care

1.1.1. Permanent Supportive Housing (PSHl ̂Effective December 1. 2023)

1.1.1.1. The Contractor must provide PSH, which is long-term assistance
for participants with a disability as defined by The U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The Contractor must
-provide assistance to program, participants until the participant(s)
chooses to exit the project or is terminated from the project as
determined by HUD regulations. 24 CFR 578

1.1.1.2. The Contractor must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing
program, in this agreement, that is targeted to serve 13 individuals,
youth, and/or'families, utilizing eight (8) housing units.

1.1.1.3. The Contractor must provide tenant basied rental assistance that is
permitted for greater than 24 months, does not have a designated

. end date, and must be administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum, as set forth in 24
CFR 578.7(a)(9). Tenant based rental assistance is rental

;  assistance in which program participants choose housing of an
appropriate size in which to reside.

i  1.1.1.4. . The Contractor must provide supportive services designed to meet
,  , the needs of the program participants.

1.1.1.5. The Contractor must ensure that program participants are not
required to participate In supportive services as a condition of their
housing'.

1.1.1.6. The Contractor must ensure PSH projects provide supportive
services for participants that will ensure successful retention in or
help in obtaining permanent housing, including air supportive
services, regardless of funding.

1.1.1.7. The Contractor must assign a case nianager to each participant
upon program entry."

1.1.1.8. The Contractor must develop a housing stability plan with program
participants that outlines the steps to be taken, including but not
limited to; .

1.1.1.8.1. Increasing both earned and non-earned income;

1.1.1.8.2. Ensuring that program participants receive Individual
assistance in obtaining the benefits of mainstream
health, social,, and employment programs for which

nr
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they are eligible to apply and that meet their needs;
and

1.1.1.8:3. Maintaining permanent housing or facilitating exits to
positive permanent housing destinations.

1.1.1.9. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service

needs of the program participants and adjust the services
accordingly.

1.1.2. Coordinated Entry (CE1 (Effective July 1. 20231

1.1.2.1. 'The Contractor must ensure the implementation of a Coordinated
Entry system, in accordance with the Continuum of Care (CoC)
Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended, in this
agreement.

1:1.2.2. The Contractor must ensure the project:

1.1.2.2.1. Provides participants with quick access to the most
appropriate services and housing - resources
available.

1.1.2.2.2. Incorporates cultural and linguistic competencies in
all engagement, assessment, and referral
coordination activities.

1.1.2.2.3. Operates a person-centered approach and with
person-centered outcomes.

1.1.2.3. The Contractor must act as the Regional Access Point for the
designated area for the CE System.

The Contractor must ensure all Regional Access Points conduct an
initial screening of risk or potential harm perpetrated on participants
as a result of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or dating
violence. In the event a defined risk is deemed,to be present, the •
Contractor must ensure participants are referred or linked to
.available specialized services and housing assistance, using a
trauma-informed approach designed to address the particular
service needs of survivors of abuse, neglect, and violence.

1.1.2.4. _The Contractor must ensure that there are staff responsible for
supporting or managing the day to day functions of CE, which may
include any combination of the following: maintaining a
prioritization list, assisting with matching particip'ants to available
housing resources, communicating, referrals, facilitating case" >
conferencing meetings, assisting with grievance and appeal
processes, monitoring CE activity, and preparing CE- monitoring
and evaluation reports.

w

f£
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1.1.2.5. The Contractor must review arid sign the New Hampshire
Coordinated Entry Partnership .Agreement, which outlines the
standards and expectations for participation in and compliance with
policies and procedures which govern CE operations.

1.1.2.6. The Contractor must affirmatively market their housing and
supportive services to eligible individuals regardless of race, color,-
national origin, religion, sex, age, familial status, or disability who
are least likely to apply In the absence of special outreach, and
maintain records of those marketing activities.

1.1.2:7. The Contractor must post, or otherwise make publicly available, a
• notice, provided by the CoC, that describes CE. The Contractor
must ensure that the notice is posted in the agency waiting areas,
as well as any areas where participants may congregate or receive
services (e.g.. dining hall). The Contractor must ensure that all staff
at each agency know which personnel within their agency can
discuss and explain CE to participants seeking more information.

1.1.2.8. The Contractor must ensure all services provided are physically
accessible to persons with mobility barriers. The Contractor must
ensure that all CE communications and documentation are

accessible to persons with limited ability to read and understand
English.

1.1.2.9. The Contractor must ensure that all persons who are fleeing or
attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking have immediate and confidential access to
available crisis services within the defined CE geographic area.

1.1.2.10. The .Contractor must ensure that all. street outreach teams are
trained on CE and the assessment process and will have the ability
to offer CE access and assessment services to participants they
contact through street outreach efforts. Street outreach teams will
be considered an access point for CE.

1.1.2.11. The Contractor must conduct the assessment in accordance with
the policies and procedures of the CE system. The assessment
process will progressively collect only enough participant
information to prioritize and refer participants to available CoC
housing and support services

1.1.2.12. The contractor must ensure that all persons served by CE are
assessed using the approved CoC Coordinated Entry Assessment
tool. The Contractor must use this tool to ensure that all persons
served are assessed in a consistent manner, using the same
process.

— D$

. ̂
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1.1.2.13. The Contractor must ensure that participant assessment
information Is updated at least once a year If the participant is
served by CE for more than 12 months. Staff may update
participant records with new information as new or updated
Information becomes known by staff.

1.1.2.14. The Contractor must manage CoC's regional prioritization list. New
participants will be added to the prioritization list and existing

,  participants' rank order on the prioritization list will be managed
according to the prioritization principles established by the CoC's
written policies and procedures governing CE operations and
decision-making.

1.1.2.15. The Contractor must collect accurate and meaningful data on
persons served by CE, review evaluation results, and offer insights
about potential improvements to CE processes and operations.

1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

■ 1.2.1. the Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the
approved HUD Project Application #SF-424.

1.2.2. The Contractor must ensure that participants meet at least one, or more, of
the qualifications of homelessness, as defined by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3.

1.2.3. The Contractor must participate in the regional and CoC CE System.

1.2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.2.5. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department as requested
by the Department.

1.2.6. The Contractor must ensure staff participate in training as required by the
Department.

1.2.7. The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.7.1. Utilization of the Housing First nriodel that ensures:

1.2.7.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
those required by federal regulations or state laws;
and

1.2.7.1.2. Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after available, options to maintain housing
are exhausted, as detailed in HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91.

1.2.7.2. Development of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive Services that is provided to participants in order to

, ̂
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deliver assistance in obtaining necessary skills and resources to
live in the community independently.

1.2.8. The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services and
community resources to meet basic needs including, but not limited to:
housing, safety, food, mental health and medical care. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.2.8.1. Participants increase safety through planning and trauma-informed
resource provision;

1.2.8.2. Facilitation of the transition of individuals,, youth, and families
experiencing homelessness to permanent housing and maximized
self-sufficiency;

1.2.8.3. Participants are empowered by Contractor's program-to increase
safety and regain control and independence; ,

1.2.8.4. Participants are offered connections to assistance in applying for
•  Compensation-funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
' advocacy and referrals to free legal services; and

1.2.8.5. Households with children wlll'be connected to education resources,
school staff, and childcare services, based on need.

1.2.9. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the
program participants and adjust the services accordingly.

1..2;10. The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for-substance
misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer support, or any other need for
referral assistance identified by the participant.

1.2.11. The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent housing, as well as participants'connections with
community and ̂ mainstream services, to increase independence and
household income to sustain permanent housing.

1.2.12. The Contractor must actively participate in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department or HUD, on
an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that must
include, but are not limited to, participant .files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations. The
Contractor must:

1.2 12.1. Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files;

1.2.12.2. Ensure financial data is available, as requested by the Departnieht
and/or HUD; and

1.2.12.3. Provide other information that assists in determining contract
compliance, as requested by the Department and/ or HUD.
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1.2.13. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b), HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector General, and the
Comptroller General of the Uriited States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,

, papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (CoC) grant,
in order to make.audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights
of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as
the records are rietained.

1.2.14. The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

1.2.15. The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from representatives of state or federal agencies
who may conduct periodic observation and review of perforrhance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents.

1.2.16. The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project Application #SF-424 and other written appropriate HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD waivers are granted.

1.2.17. The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families meet
the requirement definition of bomelessness, or at imminent risk 'of
homeiessness qualifications, as defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible for
contract services, as applicable to the project.

1.2.18. Per The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid. Transition to
Housing . (HEARTH) ■ Act . of 2009.
https://www.hud .gov/sites/documents/HAAA HEARTH .PDF:

1.2.18.1. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Inforrfiation System (NH HMIS) as the primary
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.

1.2.18.2. The Contractor must ensure all programs are licensed to provide
client level data into the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,
per 24 CFR 578, and as detailed in the following publication from
The National Network to End Domestic Violence (NNEDV):
http://glhrn.orqAft/ordPress1/wp-

content/uploads/2018/08/Comparable-Database-for-DV-'

NNEDV.pdf.

SS-2024-D8H-OW:ONTI-01 B-2.0 Contractor InlliaJi.
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1.2.18.3; The Gontractor must follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered; and
time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information
Security requirements and Exhibit I for Priyacy requirements.

1.2.19. The Contractor must comply with all record-keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103. -

1.2.20. The Gontractor must establish and maintain standard operating procedures to
ensure CoG program funds.are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578. 2 CFR
Part 500, and must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD
and the Department to determine Contractor compliance, including but not
limited to: • .

1.2.20.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor must maintain the
following documentation related to establishing and operating a
CoC:

1.2.20.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor must
maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b):

1.2.20.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The
Contractor must maintain records that establish "at

risk of homelessness" status of each individual or
family who receives CoC homelessness prevention

■4, assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.2.20.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of
Harm.-. The Contractor must maintain documentation

' of each program participant who moved to a different^
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as defined in 24 CFR 578.51 (c)^). The Contractor
must retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

1.2.20.1.3.1. The.- original incidence of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented in
the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the
housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation from a victim
service provider, social worker; legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
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victim has sought assistance: medical
or dental records; court records or law
enforcement records; or * written
certification by the program participant
to whom the violence occurred or by
the head of household; and

1.2.20.1.3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent
threat of further domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or
stalking, which would include threats
from a third-party, such as a friend or
family member of the perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service
provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service
provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance: current
restraining order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement
report or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends
of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, text
messages, and social media posts; or
a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence
occurred or the head of household.

1:2.20.2. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is
paid by the program participant, the Contractor must keep the
following documentation of annual income:

1.2.20.2.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

1.2.20.2.2. Source documents, which include but are not limited
to:

1.2.20.2.2.-1. Most recent wage statement;
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1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation
statement:

1.2.20.2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank
statements for the assets held by the
program participant; and

1.2.20.2.2.4. Income received before the dale of the
evaluation.

1.2.20.2.3. To the extent that source documents are
unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third
party,, which' may include an employer or a
government benefits administrator, or . the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or

1.2.20.2.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party,
verification are unobtainable, the written certification
by the program participant of the amount of income
that the program participant is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period following

•  the evaluation.

1.2.20.3. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of
homelessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as
applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
-participant that document:

1.2.20.3.1. The semces and assistance provided to that
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of
services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the
service package accordingly, and including case
management services as provided in 24 CFR

. 578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F);and

1.2.20.3.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

1.2.20.4. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of
compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b).
including inspection reports.

1.2.20.5. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the. types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor rnust keep

M
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documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessary.

1.2.21. The Contractor must maintain records that document compliance with:

1.2.21.1. The organizational conflict-of-interest requirements In 24 CFR
578.95(c):

1.2.21.2. The CoC board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
578.95(b); and

1.2.21.3. The other conflicts reouirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

1.2.22. The Contractor must develop. Implement and retain.a copy of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy.that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the persona! conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1.2.23. The Contractor must comply and retairi documentation of compliance with:

1.2.23.1. The homeless participation requirements in accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g);

1.2.23.2. The faith-based activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b);

1.2.23.3. Requirements of 24 CFR 578.93(c) for affirmatively furthering fail-
housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and other

' materials used to inform eligible persons of the program;

1.2.23.4. Other federal requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

1.2.23.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and

1.2.23.6. Procurement requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

j.2.24. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917). the Contractor must develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

1.2.24.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are
kept secure and confidential:

1.2.24.2. The address or location of ariy family violence project, assisted with
CoC funds, are not made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project: and

1.2.24.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with state and
local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

.t'

-  M
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2. Contract Administration

2.1. The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to.attend all meetings or trairiings
requested by the Department's Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS), including training
in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws. To the extent
possible. BHS must notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

2.2. The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within thirty (30)
days of the change.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor must submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Dale on the form
required, or specified, by the Department. ^ -•

3.2. The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to:

NH OHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services •
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

3.3. The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results of
the project activities, consistent with the format proposed in the Contractor's
application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year COC Notice of Funding
Opportunity (NOFO).

3.4. The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with NH HMIS policy and/or Department policies and procedures.

3.5. The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department, in a
format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and metrics,
Including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4. Exhibits Incorporated ^

4.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy
Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996. and In accordance with the attached Exhibit I.
Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parlies.

4.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
T-OS
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5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that,, to the extent future state or federal legisiation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service. priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services (CLAS).

5.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access,
to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. . All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of this Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract
with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services, with funds provided in part by the Stale of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g.. the
United States Department of Health and Human Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under this Agreement must have
prior approval from - the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department rinust retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;

.  5.3.3.1. Brochures;

5.3.3.2. Resource directories:

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;

5.3.3;4. Posters; and

5.3.3.5. Reports

5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under this
Agreement without prior vwitten approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. ■ In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers

jii
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pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor
-  with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services

at such facility. If any governmental license or permit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said sen/ices,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby

'■ covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities
must comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
must be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
youth, and/ or families such eligibility, verifications must be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders,
guidelines, policies and procedures;

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided, or required by
the Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or
reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each participant of services

.  hereunder, which file must include all information.necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with applicable regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor, must keep records that include, but are not limited to:
6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and

> ■— Ot
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expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind.contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department

r. 6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of. services and all invoices
submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.2. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to
CoC-funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date
and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless records are othenwise required
to be rnaintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state
or "federal law or regulation.

6.3. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department.of Health and Human Services, and any
of their designated representatives must have access to- all reports and records
maintained pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts.

6.4. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report,-the Department must disallow any
■expenses claimed by the .Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or
to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-
Houslng Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as awarded on March 28. 2023. by the

,v us Dept of Housing and Urban Development, Continuum of Care Program,
Assistance Listing# 14.267, FAIN #s: NH0096L1T002207, NH0157L1T002200.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:
2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Contractor must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the Department
no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the month in which
the services were provided. The Contractor must ensure each invoice:

3.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

3.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

3.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred ip the previous month.

3.4; Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice that may
include, but are not limited to. time^ sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchase^,
' and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

3.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

3.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to housihosuDPortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.QOv or mailed to:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within forty-five (45) days of
receipt of each invoice and- supporting documentation for authorized expenses,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

5. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall be due to
the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract completion date specified
in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7, Completion Date.

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State.
Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be ma<^ by written
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agreement of both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.

•1. Audits

7.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.QOv If any of the
following conditions exist:-

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000, or more, in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the
most recently completed fiscal year.

7.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is sut>ject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

7.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an
annual financial audit.

7.1.4. Condition D - The contractor expends less than $750,000 in federal
funds, during the fiscal year, is exempt from Federal Monitoring
Requirements, except as noted in 2 CFR 200.503, but records must be
available for review, or audit, by appropriate officials of the Federal
agency, pass through entity, and Government Accountability Office
(GAG). Federal awards expended as a recipient or a subrecipient are
subject to audit under this part. The payments received for goods or
services provided as a contractor are not Federal awards. Section §
200.331 sets forth the considerations in determining Whether payments
constitute a Federal award or a payment for goods or services provided
as a contractor.

7.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single Audit performed
by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov
within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in
accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
awards.

7.2.1. The Contractor must submit a copy of any Single Audit findings and any
associated corrective action plans. The Contractor must submit
quarterly progress reports on the status of implementation of the
corrective action plan.

7.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor must submit an annual financial
audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

7.4. ■ In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable
for .any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the p'C^artment all

fj
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payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which
have been disallowed because of such an exception.

7.5. If the Contractor is not subject to the audit requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the
Contractor shall submit one (!) copy of an audited financial report to the

■  Department, utilizing the guidelines set forth by the Comptroller General of the
United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions," within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart
F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards 90 days after contract completion date.

8. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

8.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" means all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State .to be eligible and allowable for
paymerit, in accordance with Public Law 102-550, as well as allowable cost
standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to time and with the
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. All subcontractors shall
rheet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

8.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
578 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components:
permanent housing: transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and. in
some cases, homeless prevention or an identified program component under the
applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity, such as the Joint Transitional Housing,
and Permanenl-Housing-Rapid ReHousing component project . Administrative
costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to the restrictions
on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24 CFR
578.87(c).

8.3. Match Funds:

8.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by
HUD regulations and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

8.3.2. Match funds shall be documented with each payment request.

8.3.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with
no less than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions
from other sources.

8.3.4. The Contractor may choose to utilize Cash Match, or In-Kind Match, for
the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

8.3.4.1. The Contractor must substantiate, the cash match in a
commitment letter, and then must be tracked through the
Contractor's financial statements, general ledgers, and
other records that reflect yearly financial statu^te show that
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the cash was spent on eligible program expenses within the
grant term.

8.3.5. The cash match written commitment rfiust be documented on "the
committing agency.'s letterhead and must be signed and dated by an
authorized representative of the agency providing the cash match. The
documentation, at a minimum, must Include the following:

8.3.5.1. Amount of cash to be provided for the project.

8.3.5.2. Specific date the cash will be available to the project..

8.3.5.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the cash match will be
^contributed.

8.3.5.4. Allowable activities to be funded by the cash match.
Documentation of expended match must include:

8.3.5.4.1. Agreement for cash match.

8.3.5.4.2. Cash match tracking which is done according
to general accounting principles in the
general ledger.

8.3.5.4.3. Source documentation that cash match is
spent on eligible activities under CoC
Program interim rule.

8.3.6. The Contractor must maintain records of the source and use of
.  contributions made to satisfy the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.-

8.3.7. If the Contractor utilizes In-Kind Match, the Contractor must ensure the
following requirements are met:

8.3.7.1. The- in-kind property, equipment, or goods must be
substantiated in a commitment letter and must be tracked
by the subrecipient agency to demonstrate that these items
were delivered to the project, and/or, to its participants,
during the grant term.

8.3.7.2. Written commitments .for inrkind property, equipment, or
goods must be documented on the committing agency's
letterhead and must be signed and dated by an authorized
representative of the agency providing the in-kind match.
The documentation, at a rninimum, must include the
following:

8.3.7.2.1. Description and value of the donated
property, equipment, or goods;

.  8.3.7.2.2. Specific date the property, equipment, or
goods will be made available to the project;

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01 C.2.0 Conlractor Initials
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8.3.7.2.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the property,
equipment, or goods will be contributed; and

8.3.7.2.4. Method used to determine the value of the

property, equipment, or goods

8.3.8. In-Kind Services must be substantiated in a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU), and then must be tracked by the recipient or
subrecipient to show that the services were delivered to program
participants during the grant term. Any services or benefits committed to
a program participant rather than the recipient or subrecipient through
an MOU are generally ineligible,to be counted as match.

8.3.8.1. Written commitments of /n-kmd services, during the
application, must be initially documented on the committing
agency's letterhead. The document must be signed and
dated by an authorized representative of the agency
providing the in-kind services.

8.3.8.2. An MOU must be in pjace between the
recipient/subrecipient and service provider by the time of
grant execution and must include detail of the in-kind
services, their value, and the calculation method to be used
in determining their value. Any services provided prior to the
execution of the MOU cannot be counted towards match.

8.3.9. Each MOU must:

8.3.9.1. Establish-the unconditional commitment to provide the
services, provided that the project is selected for funding by
the CoC and HUD.

8.3.9.2! Specify the services to be provided to the project.

8.3.9.3. List the profession "of the person who will provide the
services.

8.3.9.4. Include the hourly cost of the services.

8.3.9.5. List the grant and fiscal year to vi/hich the in-kind match will
i . be contributed.

8.3.9.6. Detail the system to be used to document the actual quantity
and value of the services provided to program participants
during the grant term.

8.3.10. During the grant term, the actual in-kind services provided to participants
must be documented. The documentation must include the following:

8.3.10.1. Quantity of services provided.

8.3.10.2. Value of the services.

8 3.10.3. Date(s) on which the services were provided^Ds
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8.3.11' Subrecipients must request information from third-party service
providers on in-kind service match activity at least annually and are
responsible for verifying that the match is eligible and related to program
participants served in the operating year. .

8.4. Payment of Project Costs:

8.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for
actual, eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement,
and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as specified in
the applicable Exhibit C, Budget, and as defined by HUD under the
provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject
to the availabiiity of sufficient funds. '

8.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as
eligible and allowable costs as stated' in these Payment Terms. The
Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to billing for
any other expenses.

8.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

■  8.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of
the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial
Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor
and all payments made to date.

8.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expenses that are
not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual
expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, informing the Contractor of any such disallowance.

8.5.3. If the State-disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it
i  shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor

pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture.

8.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees
that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in
the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or
regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services,
products, required report submissions, as detailed In this agreement, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements, have not been satisfactorilycorripleted
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Expense Elioibilitv

9.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall
utilize Continuum of Care Program funds, as specified in these Payment Terms,
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

9.2. Operating Expenses:

'  - ■
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9.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:
t'.

9.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing.

9.2.1.2. Property.taxes and insurance (including property and car);

9.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major
systems of the housing (provided that the payments must be
based on the useful life of the system and expected
replacement cost).

9.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50)
percent of the units or area is paid for with grant funds.

9.2.1.5. . Utilities, including electricity, gas and water.

9.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

9.2.2. Ineligible costs include;

9.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

9.2.2.2. Operating costs.of emergency shelter and supportive service-
only facilities.

9.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the
lease;

9.2.2.4. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible below is not.
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using.

.  • Continuum of Care program funds. Staff training and costs of
'• obtaining professional licensure or certifications needed to

provide supportive services are not eligible costs.

9.3. Supportive Services

9.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with all HUD regulations in
24 CFR 578.53, and are available to individuals actively participating in
the permanent housing program.

9.3.2. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for
program participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons
living with HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking.

9.3.3. Eligible costs shall include:

9.3.3.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the
assessment required by 578.53(a) (2).

9.3.3.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving
costs are eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving
company.

■  ■ . nr ■
SS-2024-OBH.06-CONTI-01 C-2.0 Contrador IniUalsV
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9.3.3.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging,
coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized
services to meet the needs of the program.participant(s) are
eligible costs.

9.3.3.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care,
and providing child-care vouchers, for children from families
experiencing honielessness. including providing meals and
snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible.

9.3.3.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge, and
basic-educational skills are eligible.

9.3.3.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of
establishing and operating employment assistance and job
training programs are eligible, including classroom, online"
and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
■that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring
learning skills,^and/or increasing earning potential. The cost of
providing reasonable stipends to program participants in
employment assistance and job training programs is also an
eligible cost.

9.3.3.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program
participants is eligible.

9.3.3.8; Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting
eligible program participants to locate, obtain, and retain
suitable housing are eligible.

9.3.3.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed
attorneys, for advice and representation in matters that
interfere with homeless individual or family's ability to obtain
and retain housing.

9.3.3.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life
management skills that may never have been learned or have
been lost during course of physical or mental illness, domestic

■ violence, substarice abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program
participant to function independently in the community.
Component life skills training are the budgeting of resources
and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items,
nutrition, the use of public transportation, and parent training.

9.3.3.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of mental health conditions that are grovided bylicensed professionals. Component servic^^are crisis

C-2.0 Conlfaclof Initials —
5/26/2023
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interventions: counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or
explanations about the use and management of medications;
and combinations of therapeutic approaches to address
multiple problems.

9.3.3.12. Outpatient health seryices. Eligible costs are the direct
outpatient treatment of medical conditions when provided by
licensed medical professionals..

9.3.3.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons
for the purpose of providing immediate support and
intervention, as well as identifying potential program
participants, are eligible.

.r

9.3.3.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program
participant intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group
and individual counseling, and drug testing are eligible.
Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible.

9.3.3.15. Transportation Services, as described in 24QFR 578(e) (15).

9.3.3.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for
utility deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid directly
to utility companies.

9.3.3.17. Direct provision of services. If a service, described as eligible
in these Payrrient Terms, is being directly delivered by the

. recipient or subrecipient, eligible costs for those services also
include the following:

9.3.3.17.1. The costs of labor or supplies, and materials
'  incurred by the recipient or subrecipient in directly

providing supportive services to program
participants..

9.3.3.17.2. The salary and benefit packages of the recipient
and subrecipient staff who directly deliver the
services.

9.3.4. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for Individuals, youth, and
families experiencing homelessness.

9.3.5. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is
already receiving rental assistance, or living in a housing unit receiving

'  rental assistance or operating assistance through other federal, State, or
local sources. •

9.3.6. Rental assistance shall be administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and may be:

SS-2024-OBH-06-CONTI-01 C-2.0 Conlrectof Inillal8i=:
S/26/2023
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9.3.6.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

9.3.6;2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

9.3.6.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

•  9.3.7. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed
2 months of rent.

9.3.8. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the
-  landlord, in addition to the security deposit and payment of first month's

rent.

9.3.9. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable,
as determined by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for
comparable unassisted units, taking into account the location, size, type,
quality, amenities, facilities, and management and maintenance of each

. unit.

9.3.10. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month's rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant. For Leasing funds only: Property damages may be
paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security deposits.

9.3.11. Housing shall be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the*housing is

.located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the.
housing or services.

9.3.12. The Contractor shall provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

9.3.12.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which

program participants choose housing of an appropriate size in
which to reside. When necessary to facilitate the coordination
of supportive services, recipients, and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their
entire period of participation, or in a specific structure for the
first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their period
of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance
provided under the. Rapid Re-Housing program component
must be tenant based rental assistance.

9.3.12.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts
between the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor
may be a private, nonprofit organization, or a community
mental health agency established as a public nonprofit
organization. Program participants must reside in housing
owned or leased by the sponsor. .

S5-2024-OBH-06-CONTI-01 C-2.0 Contractor Inttlals '^ - ■
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9.3.12.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract
with the owner of an existing structure, where the owner
agrees to lease the subsidized units to program participants.
Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

9.3.12.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental
assistance, program participants must enter into a lease
agreement for a term of at least one year, which is terminable
for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long,
except on prior notice by either party.

9.4. - Administrative Costs:

9.4.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

9.4.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded, under this part, for
the payment of project administrative costs related to the
planning and execution of Continuum of Care activities: This
does not include staff and overhead costs directly rejated to
carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through
578.57, because those costs are eligible as part of those
activities.

9.4.1.2. iSeneral management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of
overall program management, coordination, monitoring and
evaluation. These costs include, but are hot limited to,
necessary expenditures for the following:

9.4.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the
Contractor's staff, or other, staff engaged in
program administration.

9.4.1.2.2. In charging costs to this category, the Contractor
may include the entire salary, wages, and related
costs allocable to the prograrn of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the
program involve program administration
assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose
job includes any program administration
assignments. The Contractor may only use one of
these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
administration assignments include the following:

9.4.1.2.2.1. Preparing program budgets and
schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules.

SS-2024.DBH-06KJONTI-01 C-2.0
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9.4.1.2.2.2. Developing systems for assuring
compliance with program
requirements.

9.4.1.2.2.3. Developing interag'ency
agreements and agreements with
subrecipient and Contractors to
carry out program activities.

9.4.1.2.2.4. Monitoring program activities for
progress and compliance with
program requirements.

9.4.1.2.2.5. Preparing reports and other
documents related to the program
for submission to HUD.

9.4.1.2.2.6. Coordinating the solution of audit
and monitoring findings.

9.4.1.2.2.7. Preparing reports and other
documents directly related to the
program submission to HUD.

9.4.1.2.2.8. Evaluating program results against
stated objectives.

9.4.1.2.2.9. Managing or supervising persons
whose primary, responsibilities are
among those program
administration assignments, as
listed immediately above.

9.4.1.2.2.10. Travel costs incurred for official
business in carrying out the
program.

9.4.1.2.2.11. Administrative services performed
,  , under third "party contracts or.

agreements. including such
services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit
services.

9.4.1.2.2.12. Other costs for goods and services
required for administration of the
program, including such goods and
services" as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities,
office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of
office space.

[jt
Corilraclor innialsC-2.0
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9.4.1.2.2.13. Training on Continuum of Care
requirernents. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care
requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored. Continuum of Care
trainings.

9.4:1.2.2.14. Environmental review. Costs of

carrying out the environmental
review responsibilities, under 24
CFR 578.31.

9.5. Leasing:.

9.5.1. When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant
funds may be used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a
structure or structures, or portions thereof, to provide housing or
supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years. Leasing
funds may not be used to lease units , or structures owned by the

- contractor, their parent organization, any other related organization(s), or
organizations that are members of a partnership, where the partnership
owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

9.5.2. Requirements:

9.5.2.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or
part of a structure or structures, the rent paid must be
reasonable in relation to rents being charged in the area for
comparable.space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed
rents currently being charged by the same owner for
comparable unassisted space.

9.5.2.2. Leasing individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay
rent for individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable
in relation to rents being charged for comparable units, taking
into account the location, size, type, quality,' amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may
not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable units,
and the rent paid may not exceed HUD-determined fair market
•rents.

9.5.2.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas. and water are included in the rent,
these utilities may be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not
provided by the landlord, these utility costs are operating costs,
except for supportive service facilities. If the structure is being
used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are
a supportive service cost.

9.5.2.4. Security deposits and first and last rhonth's rent. The
Contractor may use grant funds to pay security^4e4k>sits, in an

SS-2024-D8H-06-CONTI-01 C-2.0 Contractor InHiah ■ —
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amount not to exceed 2 months of actual rent. An advance

payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord
in addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's
rent.

^  9.5.2.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy
agreements and subleases are required as specified in 24
CFR 578.77(a).

9.5.2.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy
charges and rent from program participants must be calculated
as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

9.5.2.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from
program participants are program income and may be used as
provided under 24 CFR 578,97.

9.5.2.8.. Transition; Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

9.5.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be
reasonable In comparison to rents charged In the area for
similar housing units. Documentation of rent reasonableness
must be kept on file by the Contractor.

9.5.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds'may not exceed HDD-
determined fair market rents.

9.5.2.11. The Contractor shall pay i.ndividual landlords directly; funds
may not be given directly to participants to pay. leasing costs.

9.5.2.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the
landlord for security deposits.

9.5.2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to
itself.

9.5.2.14. Housirig must be in compliance with all State and local housing
codes, licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other requirements of the
jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or
services.

9.6. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water).
However, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified
in HUD regulations (24 CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air
conditioning, telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are
at the participant's option.

9.7. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract, or
counted as match, complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

5 ̂
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10. Contractor Financial Management System

10.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures that ensure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds
and any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds
disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor.

10.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
2 CFR part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01 C:2.0
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Exhibit C-1, Budget

CAPBM-CE

|CoC Funds - NH0096L1T002207

SFY2024 -. 7/1/23-6/30/24

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BhSSH/\RE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET .YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportne Services S .■ 167,864 $ 5 s s - •$ s 167.864 s - 5  .

Administration s 6.520 $  ' - s  • $ •$ $  - $ 6.520 5 •

2S% Required Match s 45.102 $ _ S  -• s 45.102 s 5 s - 5

TOTAL Hud funds/balance s 221.486 5 5 " s . 45.102 s - $ S 176.384 5 - S

: •
—TOTAL .7/1723-6/30/24 •' - i

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTFlACTC RSHARE BiH$ SH ARE

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services S 167.684 i ' -■ $ .5 s - $ s 167.864 s • 5

Administration s 6.520 $  * S i  ■ % .5 -• $  --vv $ 6.520 S,i •s:

25% Required Match s 45.102 !• • 5 5 45.102 S s s • S  -

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE s 221.486 5 '•L s ■ 5 45.102 S - 8 176.364 s 5

Total W/0 Match 176,384

SS-2024-OBH-O6-CONT1-O1

CAPBM

Contractor Iniiiats
Pat^5/26/2023
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Exhibit C-2. Budget

BMCAP PSH

ICeC Funds • NH01S7UT2200

SFY2024 12/1/23-6/30/24 - .  1

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTORSHARE BHSSHAKb

BUDGET rro MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

S  60.«S1 5 s s 9> 9 9 60.851 9- 9

S  44.650 S s s 9 • 9 S 44.650 9 ■ 9
*•

$  5.067 s' . - s 5 ,• 9 • 9 ■ $ 5.067 $ • S

S  25.KS $ s % 28.909 5 S •' 9 . 9

TOTAL HUO FUNOSmALANCE S  1W.477 t s 28.909 9 • 9 9 110.998 9 •: S

• ; SFY2025'- 7/1/24-11/30/24 ' i
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTFUCTCRSHARE B ■ISSHj8RE .

BUDGET rro MONTHLY BUDGET YTD ' MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 43.465 S' •••" s •
s 9 9 4X465 9 9

9
^

Supportive Services
S  3.620 ■f 5 s 9 9 9 X620 9 - S

S  2a649 i S -
s 20.649 9 9 •

9 S

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE t'i tl.SZB t ■■■'• . s .% 20.849 9-- 9 . C-.- 9 78J77 9 9

a <■

— "T - TOTAL r12/1/23-11/30/24 .

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTt3R SHARE BHS skARE

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

S  104.316 5  . $  '• % T -'-I 9V- 9  ■ - 9 104,316 9.-. 9

S  78.542 5  . S . 9--- 9 9 78>42 9;^S S

S  8.667 S s  * >. s V 9C- V 9. 8.667 9-,' S

25% Required Match S  49.558 S  r 9 s 49.556 • ■9 • :■ 9 > ' 9 - 9  ' • •

TOTAL HUO FUNOS/BALANCE S  239.103 .t $• 9 49.S54 9 $ 9 189.945 9 9  * -. •

Total W/O Match $ 1t9.64S

SS-2024-06H-OfrCOWn-01
CAP6M
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Exhibit C-3, Budget

CAPBM - CE

|CoC Funds - NH0096UT(TBD)

*SFY2025"^'>/i/24-6/30/25
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supporlrve Sendees S t67.ee4 s S  • s 8 • .8 .8 167.864 8,-- s

Administration s 8.S20 j r- • • s s 8 -. 8  .>• 8 0.520 %■' '' s

25% Required Match s 45,102 S 5 8 45.102 ■ 8 S $ -- 8  i-

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE s 221.48$ S S  * - 8 45.102 s 8 * .. • 8 176.384 .8- .8

:

•V 1U1AL -//l/2^b/dU/2> ... . .

•  >

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive SerMces s 1 $7,004 s ,S 8 -s $ 8 167.804 ;S ■ S

AdmirtistraOon $ S.S20 $ ■* ■* " r- s 8 • 5 s 8 8.520 8 • 8

25% Required Match s 45.102 S s 8' 45.102 8' $ .. ■$ 8,

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE t 221.48$ S  -■ 8 45,102 % ■-' . •8 •. 8 176,384 s .8

Total WIO Match 176,3W

SS-2024-0BH^-COWT.I-01-
CAPBM

Contractor Initials5
Oaf S/26/2Q23



OeewSlDn Eftvdopo lO: A7Dei1Fl-9SAS.499E<«tM»-B3Cei72OO4S0

Exhibit C-4, Budget

BMCAP PSH■

|CoC Funds - NH0157UT(TBD)

SFY2025 • 12/l/24r.6/30/2S
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name . BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance ' s  60.asi s  •- . s s $ - S S  60.851 S i $

Supportive Services S  44.650 s s  . 5. -= s • s  - . S  44.650 5 S

AdministratJon S  . 5.067 s $ t. $ • s $• 5.067 5 - $

25% Required Match -- S  26.909 S  ' N s. S  26.909 .* - S' S • 5

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE'. S  139.477 s s  r-- %  26.909 i • $  110.668 5 5

SFy2026 7/1/25-11/30/25
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance s 43.465 S S s  ' s- s s 43.465 s •• .s ?-

Supportive Services 8 31.892 s S 9 S:- s s 31.892 s . s

Administration S 3.620 $  - S S - .8. f s 3.620 $ - 5  * -■

25% Required Match s 20.649 $ S * ■ 8 20.649 S s s • S

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE s 99.626 S S 20.649 S - S  ' 9 78.977 S -• ■ s

TOTAL'. X2/1/24-11/30/25
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SH ARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YID MONTHLY

Rental Assistance S 104.316 s'- ■ s 9 s • 5  ' 9  104.316 s • s

Supportive Services - s 76.542 s s  * - 9 s - • 9 8  76.542 9 •. $  ' - ;
Administration s 8.667 s 5 s • s • 9 9  8.687 S - 5  T

25% Required Match s 49.558 s $ S 49.558 S 9 S - -.8 . .

TOTAL HUb t^UNbSyftALANdE 9 239.103 s 9 9 49.558 $ - $ 9  189.645 5 - 9

Total W/0 Match 189.S45

SS-2024-08H-06-C0NTI-01

CAPSM

Contrattof Inittalt
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Exhibit C-5, Budget

CAPBM • CE

|CoC Funds • NHOOBeLlTfTBO}

"■ S FY'2b26 7/i/2S-'6/36'/26

Activity Name

TOTAL PROGRAM COST
BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

CONTRACTOR SHARE
BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

BHS SHARE
BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Sefvtees $. 167.864 $---•• 167.864 S -

Administration 8.S20 $ - 8.520

25% Requred Match 45.102 S  ■ 45.102 S ■;

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 221.488 45,102 S -

'TOTAL"^7yi/.25;:6/30/26

Activity Name
SupporUve Services
Adrr^nistration

25% Required Match
TOYaL hud FUNDS/BALANCE

TOTAL PROGRAM COST
BUDGET

.167.864

8.520

45.102

221,488

YTD MONTHLY

5

CONTRACTOR SHARE
BUDGET

45.102

45.102

YTD

s -

$ •

MONTHLY

BHS SHARE

BUDGET
167.864

8.520

176.384

YTD

iS -
S-..

5 •

MONTHLY

Total W/0 Match 176,384

SS-2024-DBH-06-CONTI-01

CAPBM

Contractorlniti^ise
S/26/2023
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IcoC Funds - NH0157UT{T8D)

Exhibit C-€. Budget

SFY2026. - 12/1/25-6/30/26 ^
. TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $ eo.esi S s  " 5 s  ' - • 5  60.85t s 5

Supportiw Services s 44.650 $ $ s  V. s - t  V S  44.650 S

Administration $ 5.067 s- 5 s " > S i-. 8 8  5.067 $>: s

25% Reqi^red Match s 28.909 » S 5  28.909 s 5"- ir-' $

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE % 159.477 5  ' : ' 5" 5  28.909 s  ' 5  110.888 S-, $

.  ■ SFY20.27 •7/1/26-11/30/26 •

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY • BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance s 43.465 8 $ S 8 - 8  43.465 8 • 8

Supportive Services $ 31.692 S 5  !- $ 8 8 8  31.892 8 - s

Adminislration s 3.620 $ s 8 . 8 8  3.620 $ - 8  - ■

25% Required Match s 20.649 S'-' ■ T ; $ 8 20.649
"

8 5.- 8  " .

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE s ■99.626 $ $ s 20.849 S~ S" ■ -i- . ».. 78,977 8- .8 i .

•  '

-  <•: • TOTAL -.12/1/25-11/30/26 .J

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD. MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

Rental Assistance s 104.316 $ s 8  * s • 8  104.316 $ - 8  * ■-'

Supportive Ser\4ces s 76.542 s $  . - 8 8 • 8  - 8  76.542 8 - 8  -

Administration s 6.687 s  ' s 8 5 . 8  • 8  6.687 8 S  --

25% Required Match s 49.558 $ s 8  49.558 8 8 8 8

TOTAL HUD 5 239,103 $ 5 8  49.658 8 • 8 S  189.545 8 -t 8

Total W/0 Match 169.54$

SS-202A.D8H-05<ONTI-01

CAPBM

[IContractor Initials^'—-

Date 5/26/2023



DeewSlBn&wdo^lO:A7Dei1F1feS4S-499E-e803-«3C81720845a

Exhibit C-7; Budget .

CAPBM-CE

|CoC Funds - NH0096UT{TBO)

SFY2027 - 7/1/26-6/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BhISSH/VRE

Activity Name BUDGET VTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportrse Services s 167.864 $  • s 5 s. S  i 6  167.864 s - s

Administration s 8.520 -$ r •• s S .V - -• 5 - - S t  8.520 5 - s

25% Required Match s 45.102 s 5  . s 45.102 $  *- s' : - S-:- $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE .$ 221.486 5  ■ ■ s  "■ i ^.102 S $  •- S  176.384 S.'v .5 T

TOTAL:"7/1'/26-'6/30/27'
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE 6>IS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services s 167.864 $ 5 S 5 S" ' .vr-' $  167.884 s  .- $

Administration s 8.520 s " 5 s 5 - S S  8.520 s • 5  -

25% Required Match s 45.102 s 5 S 45.102 . s S  . $ • sr.

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE s 221.488 s
■

S S 45.102 5 . s  . - S  178.384 s^- s

Total W/0 Match 176.384

SS-2024-0BK-06-COWTI-01

CAPBM

Contractor Initials

DateS/26/2023
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Exhibit C*8, Budget

BMCAP PSH

|C0C Fund5 - NH0157L1T(TBO)

SFY2027 12/1/2^/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BF(S SH \̂RE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET. YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  60.851 s s s S i s s 60.851 s.- •- .

Supportive Services S  44.650 .s 5  ' - ' s s s 44.650 S 5

Administration S  5.067 s  •• s  • s $ - s $ 5.067 s - S  *

25% Required Match S  28.M9 s s S  28.909 •s s ;;-••• s.- S  r

Y6YAL hUD FUNOS/BALANCE t  1J9.477 5 s S  26,999 S T. 's s 110ACS s.-

V.

'

■  "■
SFY2028 • 7/1/27-11/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE .  BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance S  43.465 s s s s 5 6 43.485 s s;

Supportive Services S  31.692 S ■ S  ■ - s s $ S 31.892 s s -

Administration $  3.620 ■$" s s s - S s 3.620 .
$  ,i..

25% Required Match S  20.649 $ S S  20.649 •s s ^1 s . s

YOYAL HUd FUNDsraALANCE S  99,626 s s  , - 9  20A49 s - .s s 78,977- .S;-

TOTAL -12/1/26-11/30/27.
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS.SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY. BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance %  104.316 ■$ ' •- s s s s s 104.316 s • $

Supportive Sendees $  76.542 s s s s • s s 76.542 s • 5  r

Administration S  8.667 s s S  i s s 6.667 s - S

25% Reqi^red AAatch S  49.556 s 6 S  49.558 s s > $ • S

YGYaL MUO PUNDSy^ALANee S  239,103 5 S  49,658 s • $ % 189,646 s - • 5

Total W/0 Match 189.54S

SS-2024-OBH-O6-COmi-01

CAPBM

la
Contractor Initials^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTflflENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1909 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Stale
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services '
. 129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: ,
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use ofa controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will •
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee, was working, unless the Fet^J^agency

Exhibit 0 - Certification re®afdin0 Drufl Free Veridof Inltlato,
Workplace Requirements S/26/2023

CO(OHHS/UCl7»3 Pfifle 1 Of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the. Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. leaking a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through".
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1,2. 1.3.1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: Communi ty Acfion Program Belknap-Merrimack Co

-OocuSlgnadbr;

5/26/2023

Oate Name:'?e^"'^"^9fi
chief Executive Officer

-09

Exhibit D - Certirwalion fegardit>9 Dnig Free Vendor Initials.
Workplace Requirements 5/26/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of i
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certificalion:

US DEPARTfVlENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

■ US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicald Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: • • j

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to j
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member j
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a fwlember of Congress in |
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention •;
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). " i

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for ■ j
irifluencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any.agency, a Member of Qongress.^
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the-award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, w
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certificafion is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required .
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for j
each such failure. |

Vendor Name: community Action Program selknap-Merrimack cp

'OocuSigrMd by.

5/26/2023 JuUaKU H

Chief Executive Officer
-OS

Exhibil E - Certiricalion Reflardit>g Lobbying Vendor InHials^
5/26/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Conlraclor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended," 'ineligible.*."lower tier covered ■
transaction." "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause; have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from partlcipalion in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

'6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9, Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of rewrds
in order to render in qood faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

11'
Exhibit F -Cenification RegarcJine Debarmenl, Suspension Contractor lniliabi_

And Other Responsiblliiy Matters 5/26/2023
cu/DHHsriio7t3 Page1i3f2 Date^^___
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'  Now Hampshire Department of Hoatth and Human Services
Exhibit F

fr

information of a participant is not required to exceed that wtiich is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered trans.actlon knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who >s
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this'transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS J " ^ ̂  ^
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and t)elief, that it and Its

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for detjarment. declared ineligible, or
■ voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11 4- have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an expIanaUon to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS . .
13. By signing and submitting this .lovrer tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower her participant, as

defined in 46 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its prinapals.
131 are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. v^ere the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective par^cipant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14' The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this-proposal (contract) that it will
' Include this clause entiUed •Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack

DOMSlBMtfby:

5/26/2023

Vammm-Aqn-.-
Date

chief Executive officer

ExhlWl F - Certificstion Regarding Debarment, Suspension ConlrBctor Initials
S •

And Other ResponsiblSty Matters S/26/2023
Pige2ol2 . Dale,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLQWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 19'68 (42 U.S.C. Section 37B9d) which'prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national ongin. and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Erhployment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the-Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
siatule are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

r the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 200bd. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity).
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. "Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discrimjnating on the basis of disability, in regard to erhployment arid the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity; *

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Ameridments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1661,1663,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of'sex in federally assisted education programs:

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C F R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U 8 Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity: Policies
and Procedures)- Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations)' and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for.
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowirig activities in conneclion with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for

•  suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibh G
Contraclorlniliab

CmUkaOor, el CanvUft* whh f»c|uHmeoO p«t«Wno lo NeodlKrtnitWion of f ̂Be»d OowtlMUow
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Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of fundsi the recipient.will forward a copy of,the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Departrnent of Health and Human Sen/ices, and •
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the. General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Conununity Action program Belknap-Merrimack

':y ^[>o«u$lBn»4by:

5/26/2023 1 Hyn
tiuriiwwwej.,. • ' ~

Dale Name: Jeanne Agn
chief Executive Officer

5Exhibit G
Contractor Inittais
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227^ Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or .
contracted for by an er^tity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
.or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loar} guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions,of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the resporisible entity;

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following '
certification: •

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to cornply |
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994: i

Contractor Name: Community Action Program BelknaprMerrimack c

-0ocw»>BO«a byl

5/26/2023

Date Name: jeaTTne Agn
Title:

chief executive officer •

ExhibH H - Certification Regarding Contractor initials
(7

Environtnenlal Tobacco Smdte 5/26/2023
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT.
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to .
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security-of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered •
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45..
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaoreaation" shall have, the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f.. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. . ■

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of '1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, .162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a jDerson who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). :

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of. Individually Identifiable Health .
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received-by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExhWn Contfaetor Iniliab^-^—'
Health Insurance Portabilily Act
Business Associate Agreement 5/26/2023
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Se'rvices or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning -
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
-  Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, ernployees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit.
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHj:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to.the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
Ml. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

■  Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)

■  reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA-Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent" it has obtained
knowledge of such breach. ' '

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose ariy PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered'Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Buslfiess;

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor initials.
Health Insurance Portability Act
Busirtess Associate Agreement S/26/2023
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information nol.provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perforin a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was'made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. ' The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make avajlable all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule. •

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions arid conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered .a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gplateagreements .with Contractors intended business associates, who will be receivih^HI

3/2014 Exhibtl I Contfactof lnHi8ls^*^—~
Health Insurance Portability Act '
Business Associate Agreement 5/26/2023
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about ah individual contained in a Designated Record-
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
:amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR-Section 164.526.

•1, - Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

]. Within ten (id) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request fo'r an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of.PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

■|.v Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or

;  destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI,and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thpeeps
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

3/2014 Exhibit I * Contractof —
Health Insurance Portability Act.

... BusinessAssodaleAgreement 5/26/2023
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQations of Covered Entity
ir

a. Covered Entity shall^ notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHl.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.503.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,-
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI,

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not othenvise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as v-
amended. .

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
n,ecessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
'With respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be reeoived
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule,

3/2014' ' ExHibit I Contractor Inlt'iab^
Health Insuranco Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 5/26/2023
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SeareQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit,! or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Sen^ices community Action program Selknap-Merrimack Co
Contractor.

Signature of Authorized Representative SigTlatui^fTruthorized Representative

Katja s. Fox Jeanne Agri

Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Name of Authorized Representative

chief executive Officer

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

5/30/2023 S/26/2023

Date Date

3/2014 Extiibtti

Health Insurance Porlabtlity Ad
Business Assodale Agreement

Page 6 of 6
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■CERTinCATlbw REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE.

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA), requires prime awardees of individual .
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the •
initial award is'below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over I
$25,000, the award is su^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. .
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the

•Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance •
9. Unique identifier of- the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gress revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through'reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data bythe end of the month, plus 30 days. In which .
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor Identified tri Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, '
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera] Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency AcL

«

Contractor Name: community Action Program eelknap-Merrimack

^—0«cuSign«4 by: |
5/26/2023 , , 1 JuKUjL llf\ ;

^Date ■ " " ■■■■" ■ Namei^^^dlni&^'Tigri ■-■* - ' j
chief Executive Officer

Exhibit J - Cofllflcfttlon RegardlnQ the FedemI Funding Contractor InlUab
AcwwnlaWBty And Traniparancy Ad (FFATA) CompBanea 5/26/2023
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.FORMA

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. , .

.  . FND1A6MY3D03
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-qrants, and/or cooperative agreements;' and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

:  NO ^ yes
If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives In your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.G.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the an^er to #3 above is YES, stop here

.  If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as bllows;

Name:.

Name:,

Amount:..

Name:-,/

Amount,-

-

Name:;..

Name:._

Amount..;.

Amount:,.

Amount:,

CUX>HHSni0713

•OS

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inftials
Accountability And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Complianco
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized • users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide* National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one. party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment ■ Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

■  Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is riot limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user,' etc.) that receives

r  DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or- implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its .data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for'the processing or storage of data: and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
conserit. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

I' " ' OS

V5. Lest update ltV09/l8 ExhibilK Contractor InlUals
DHHS Irrformation

Security Requirements 5/26/2023
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

•7., "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
■ not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's-maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of ."Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

,  160.103. t

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized^ individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing.organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessaiy as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Last update I0rt)9/18 ExWWt K Contraclof Initiate
DHHS Information

Securliy Requiremenia 5/26/2023
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that QHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used.pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS.Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User, is transmitting DHHS data contairiing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks arid Portable Storage Devices.. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3." Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and beirig sent to -and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

■  4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing, the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops, and PDA. jf End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

■8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via ap open
M

Jff
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) >when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User v/ill
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure'of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTiFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor, will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the sen/ices rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud .service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

.5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in. a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewali protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its compiete cooperation with the State's
Chief.lnformation Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conftdential Information, on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a.part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and- media
sanitizatioh, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines

■■ for Media Sanitizatipn, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,

.  ' regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of-this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data "erasure, also known as secure data"wiping,

IV. PROCEDyRES FOR SECURITY

'  A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
. derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures -to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation. ■ use, storage and' secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.)'
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
.  contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential, information

where applicable.

'A. The Contractor .will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. 'The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will'work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to

, system access being authorized.

8. If the 'Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be, completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach .Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent-future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

—0$
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call^center sen/ices necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
inforrhation and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of-New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response proc.ess. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy, Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access, to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS. Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contjact from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only-If encrypted and being
sent to and being received' by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is

'  physically and technologically secure from- access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.). r

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at -all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, lised and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential 'information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
arid other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential 'Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must, further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notv/ilhstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personal.ty identifiable information is involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

,  OS
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, If so, identify appropriate
Breach, notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

.DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

-09
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